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OUR
VISION

OUR
VALUES

OUR
PRIORITIES

Our vision is to be “First in
Care, Research and Learning”
to improve outcomes for our
community and Victorians.

Our values and behaviours
guide the way we work
together to achieve our vision.

We aim to achieve our
vision by focusing on six
strategic priorities.

Care
First in delivering safe and
high quality care

Caring
We treat everyone with
kindness and compassion

Care and outcomes
Deliver outstanding care
and outcomes

Research
First in integrated evidence
–based research into practice

Excellence
We are committed to learning and
innovation

Patient and consumer experience
Partner with and empower our
patients and consumers

Learning
First in developing our workforce
and community

Integrity
We are open, honest and fair

Innovation and transformation
Embrace innovative thinking in
everything we do

Respect
We treat everyone with respect and
dignity at all times
Unity
We work together for the benefit
of all

Workforce and culture
Enable our people to be the
best they can be
Collaboration
Maximise the potential of
our partnerships
Sustainability
Be a recognised, respected
and sustainable health service

Front Cover: Dr Bruce Campbell, Neurologist,
and A/Professor Peter Mitchell, Director of
Neurointervention
Back Cover: Liz Cashill, Patient Experience
Manager, and Georgina w, Person Centred Care
Coordinator
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994,
we are pleased to present the Report of Operations for
Melbourne Health for the year ending 30 June 2015.

Introduction
The past 12 months have been a very
busy time for Melbourne Health.

Mr Robert Doyle
Chairman

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive
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In this one year, more than 92, 546
inpatient services were provided, the
emergency department saw more than
66,000 presentations, and more than
637,000 outpatient appointments were
made in our acute, sub-acute and mental
health clinics. Compared with last year,
The Royal Melbourne Hospital (RMH)
treated 2600 more patients in our
emergency department, had almost 4000
more inpatient admissions and around
10,000 additional outpatient attendances.
Our NorthWestern Mental Health
(NWMH) staff cared for almost 5000
consumers in its 200 acute adult, youth
and aged inpatient beds, reflecting the
high demand and rapid throughput in this
area. We were able to meet these growing
demands on our services due to the hard
work and dedication of our staff.
Shaping our Future
During 2014/15, we undertook a major
consultation program with our staff,
patients, consumers, carers and partner
organisations to develop our new vision,
values and plan for the future. Entitled,
Shaping our Future, this program was
the largest consultation exercise ever
undertaken by Melbourne Health. It
represents our commitment to working
together in partnership with the
community to shape future health
service design and delivery.

Over 1500 staff, patients, consumers,
carers, and partners shared their views
and aspirations through the Shaping our
Future consultation process. They told us
what we do well already and what they
would like to see us improve on. This
feedback helped form our new vision to be
First in Care, Research and Learning. This
vision builds on a strong foundation of
firsts, starting with Victoria’s first hospital
established in 1848. Our vision will
inspire our people to continue to lead and
innovate across all parts of our service,
locally, nationally and globally.
We also took this time to review our
values and determine the culture we
want to build to ensure that Melbourne
Health is a great place to work and to
be cared for as a patient or consumer.
Our values define how we behave and
are critical to achieving our vision and
plan for the future. An outcome of the
extensive consultation was affirmation
of four of our values and a recommendation
to replace the value of Discovery with
Excellence as this value resonated more
strongly with our staff. Embedding these
values – caring, excellence, integrity,
respect and unity – and the supporting
behaviour statements into our daily
activities is our focus for 2015/16.
The feedback from this consultation
was instrumental in the development
of Transforming Health – The Melbourne
Health Strategic Plan 2015–2020 which
will be released during the second half
of 2015.

Our year in review
One of the most exciting developments
this year was the opening of the Doherty
Institute for Infection and Immunity.
A $210 million partnership between the
University of Melbourne and RMH,
the Doherty Institute boosts Australia’s
capacity to lead in the fight against
infectious diseases. Officially opened
by the Prime Minister Tony Abbott in
September, this world-class institute
brings together experts in public health
and epidemiology with clinicians who are
at the forefront of preventing, diagnosing,
managing and treating infectious diseases.
The need for a multidisciplinary response
to reducing the impact of known and
emerging infectious diseases was evident
with the overseas outbreak of Ebola
Virus Disease (EVD) last year. As the
designated Victorian centre for receiving
patients with suspected or confirmed
EVD, staff at the RMH worked closely
with our laboratory colleagues from the
Victorian Infectious Diseases Reference
Laboratory (VIDRL) based at the
Doherty, to review and refine treatment
and testing procedures to safely manage
patients and protect the community from
the threat of EVD.
NWMH continued its role as Victoria’s
leading mental health provider. To
improve the safety and wellbeing of staff
and consumers, in May NWMH became
the first mental health service in Australia
to introduce passive drug-detector dogs to
deter illicit substances from being brought
into inpatient units. Already a success
overseas, this initiative was implemented
in consultation with consumers, carers
and staff to improve the safety of our
mental health services. Early results from
the program are very positive and will be
formally evaluated to inform further use
of this safety strategy.
NWMH aged residential care services
underwent significant changes with the
closure of Weighbridge and South Stone
facilities in 2014. Residents from these
facilities were transitioned into suitable
alternative accommodation of their
choosing based on care needs.

In another Australian first, the RMH
launched Australia’s first Indigenous
Internship Program to support an
Indigenous medical student through
their internship and first year as a
House Medical Officer (HMO). Part
of our Aboriginal Employment Plan,
this initiative aims to encourage junior
Indigenous doctors to access the vast
range of medical and research support
programs that are available both within
the hospital and the Parkville Precinct.
Melbourne Health together with Inner
North West Melbourne Medicare Local,
Cohealth and Merri Community Health
Service is committed to working together
to improve patient care, outcomes and
pathways for our shared community.
The Collaborative Framework 2012–2017,
outlines the shared commitment and
principles that will support a common
goal of collaborating to move more
care into the primary care setting. The
collaborative projects include addressing
needs in the areas of diabetes, chronic
kidney disease, back pain, improving
e-health, developing a regional
health plan, and participation in the
HealthPathways Melbourne project. Our
communities and those who rely on our
services can be confident in the knowledge
that there is an ongoing commitment
from the four collaborative partners to
diligently work towards achieving the
outcomes outlined in this framework.
2014/15 saw significant progress on the
Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre
(VCCC) project. The VCCC aims to
be a world leader in cancer treatment
and research in Australia and globally.
Drawing closer to realising this vision,
we celebrated major milestones with
our partners in this $1 billion initiative.
Throughout the year, two link bridges
were installed connecting the RMH
to the VCCC across Grattan Street.
Construction works on our new 42bed Intensive Care Unit, haematology
in-patient ward, Central Sterile Supply
Department (CSSD), Intraoperative MRI
(iMRI) and hybrid operating theatres
all continued at pace, forever changing
the street-scape of the RMH on Grattan
Street and Royal Parade. Services will
commence operating in the VCCC
Northside (RMH) in late 2015 with the
relocation of Peter Mac to the VCCC
Southside building planned for June 2016.

The impact of clinical research conducted
at the RMH is far-reaching. EXTENDIA, a ground-breaking study, looked at
the effectiveness of using a combination
of stroke treatments versus a single
treatment. The study, led by Dr Bruce
Campbell and Associate Professor Peter
Mitchell, was published in the New
England Journal of Medicine in February
and garnered medical and media attention
worldwide. The impressive results will
change treatment for ischaemic stroke
across the globe, potentially benefitting
many thousands of patients who suffer
this type of stroke every year.
Through our Melbourne Health
services, The Royal Melbourne Hospital,
NorthWestern Mental Health and the
Doherty Institute, and our partnership
with the University of Melbourne,
we continue to build on our legacy of
excellence in care, research and learning
for the benefit of our community.
Continuous Improvement
Safety is the foundation of everything
we do at Melbourne Health and the focus
of every decision that we make. In our
efforts to embed our ‘Safety First’ focus,
several organisational wide initiatives were
implemented this year to improve safety
and quality of care.
In early 2015, RMH clinical staff
participated in the Speaking Up for
Patient Safety survey, the first of its kind
ever undertaken by an Australian hospital.
This survey was conducted to measure
safety culture across departments and
professional groups to identify areas with
strong safety cultures and those where
improvements are needed. Almost 60
percent of our clinical and clinical support
staff responded to the survey. This is an
outstanding result. Organisation-wide and
targeted departmental communication of
the survey results will commence in the
second half of 2015.
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Nightlife was launched in February 2015
to improve patient safety, quality of care
and support for junior staff who are
working at the RMH. We changed our
model of care so that our patients receive
the same standard of care regardless
of the hour. Improvements were also
made to ensure that our night staff,
particularly junior doctors, receive the
same standard of clinical support as their
daytime colleagues. Evaluation of this
project has demonstrated reduced patient
length of stay, improved patient and staff
experience, improved communication and
a more equitable workload.
Against the backdrop of increased
demand for our services, the ‘Keep
Times Real’ initiative was implemented
in October to improve processes and
minimise delays in the transfer of patients
from the Emergency Department to
inpatient wards at the RMH. Based on
a decentralised bed management model,
this initiative is improving patient flow
throughout the hospital and is creating
timely and safe access for patients who
need emergency care.
Informatics
In late June 2014, Melbourne Health
committed to delivering an Electronic
Content Management (ECM) system
by the end of 2015. This is a critical
foundation step to a future electronic
medical record (eMR). The introduction
of an ECM will see the digitisation of
paper medical records giving multiple
clinicians simultaneous access to online
medical record content. Considerable
work was done throughout the year to
prepare the hospital for an ECM which
will go live in the second half of 2015.
In February, an electronic discharge
summary application, e-Discharge,
was implemented transforming the
way patient discharge summaries are
completed at the RMH. Discharge
summaries are now typed reducing
the risk of miscommunication due
to illegibility. e-Discharge, which is
connected to other clinical applications
such as iPM and the Patient Flow
Management System, has improved the
quality, security and completeness of our
discharge summaries.
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Research and education
Melbourne Health fosters research
that enhances patient care, challenges
clinical practice and promotes innovative
healthcare delivery. As a hospital with
strong commitments to clinical research
and education, we are making worldclass evidence-based care accessible to all
Victorians.
Melbourne Health was strongly
represented in the election of fellows
into the Australian Academy of Health
Sciences Australia with Professors Graham
Brown, Stephen Davis, Leonard Harrison,
Geoffrey Lindeman, and Andrew Roberts
selected in 2015 for the distinguished
professorial achievement in their fields
related to health and medicine. The
Academy was established to provide an
impartial and authoritative voice from the
best and brightest in health and medical
research and we are honoured to have the
best practice here at Melbourne Health.
This year we saw links with our Parkville
Partners strengthen with the launch of the
Melbourne Genomics Health Alliance.
The Alliance aims to integrate genomic
information into everyday healthcare and
personalise medicine. Another partnership
with our Parkville precinct organisations,
the Melbourne Healthcare Partners,
was designated as an Advanced Health
Research and Translation Centre, one
of just four such centres in Australia. Led
by Melbourne Health, this partnership
further cements Parkville as Australia’s
leading biomedical research precinct. It
also recognises the partner organisations
as some of the world’s best for using
medical research to improve patient care
by the National Health and Medical
Research Council (NHMRC).
Funded by the NHMRC, the National
Centre for Antimicrobial Stewardship
(NCAS) was established as the lead
national body for antimicrobial
stewardship. Building on our strong
track record of antibiotic stewardship,
innovation and successful translation into
clinical practice, NCAS brings together
many of the essential groups in the
scientific community with an interest in
antimicrobial resistance and antimicrobial
stewardship in both veterinary and
medical sectors.

Two legends of clinical research—Dr
Charles Kellaway and Professor Graham
Brown—were inducted into the RMH
Research Hall of Fame at the annual
Celebrating Research Gala Dinner in
May. At the same dinner, Drs Bruce
Campbell and Kylie Mason, two clinicianresearchers working on pioneering
treatments for stroke and blood cancers
were named joint winners of the RMH
Research Medal, and a $50,000 prize,
funded by the RMH Foundation.
Awards and accolades
Our staff continue to be the linchpin
of our success. Their commitment to
ensuring our patients and the broader
Victorian community have access to high
quality healthcare is unwavering.
In May, Professor Andrew Kaye, Director
of the Department of Neurosurgery and
Head of the Department of Surgery at the
University of Melbourne, was awarded
the American Association of Neurological
Surgeons International Lifetime
Recognition Award. This award recognises
his contribution to neurosurgery,
nationally and internationally.
Professor Geoff Lindeman, Director of
the Familial Cancer Centre and Principal
Fellow in the Department of Medicine at
the University of Melbourne was awarded
the 2014 Medical Oncology Group
Australia—Novartis Oncology Cancer
Achievement Award in recognition of his
outstanding contribution to improving
the care and outcomes for patients with
breast cancer.
In August, Dr George Heriot was
recognised by the Royal Australasian
College of Physicians (RACP) with the
Bryan Hudson Medal. This prestigious
award, bestowed to trainees, recognises
the highest overall mark in written and
clinical examinations of the RACP.
Professor Helen Herrman, Director of
Research at Orygen National Centre for
Excellence in Youth Mental Health and
Professor of Psychiatry at the University
of Melbourne was elected as the President
of the World Psychiatric Association.
With this appointment Professor Herrman
become the first Australian to be elected to
lead the psychiatric profession worldwide.

In the Australia Day Honours, Professor
Anthony Costello, Director of Urology,
was awarded a Member of the Order of
Australia in The General Division, for his
significant service to medicine in the field
of urology as a clinician, administrator
and author, to cancer research and to
medical education.
Dr George Varigos, Head of Dermatology,
was awarded the Certificate of Meritorious
Service for his contribution to the
Australasian College of Dermatologists
and the dermatology profession at large.
The 2014 staff influenza vaccination
program achieved a vaccination rate
of 95 percent compliance—the highest
result ever achieved by an Australian
health service. This achievement was
recognised with the Australian Council
on Healthcare Standards Quality
Improvement in Healthcare Measurement
Prize and in addition, the communication
excellence award from the Institute of
Public Administration Australia (IPAA).
The 2014 Victorian Public Healthcare
Awards saw three Melbourne Health
projects receive commendations.
Community Team North from Northern
Area Mental Health Service who
introduced a physical health program for
its consumers were named gold winners
of the Excellence in person-centred care
award. When compared with the general
population, people with serious mental
illness have a shorter life span and higher
rates of morbidity and mortality due to
the increased prevalence of cardiovascular
risk factors, such as smoking, obesity and
diabetes. The Physical Health Program
centred on improving the holistic care and
experiences of all consumers within the
service by addressing physical health needs
in a manner that was accessible, responsive,
evidence-based, and client centred.
The silver winner of the Excellence
in supporting self-managed healthcare
category was awarded to the Emergency
Department Chest Pain Service, which
offered telephone support and education
to patients presenting with chest pain by
an experienced cardiac nurse dramatically
reducing the number of re-presentations.

For its role in coordinating Australia’s
largest paired kidney exchange, The
Royal Melbourne Hospital was highly
commended in the Premier’s Award for
Advancing healthcare—putting patients
first category. The procedure involved six
hospitals, at least 150 staff, 12 patients,
the first ever altruistic anonymous live
kidney donor, and most importantly, it
changed the lives of six people.
The North West Area Mental Health
Service’s Five Ways to Strengthen
Wellbeing campaign was a finalist in
the 2014 Victorian Health Promotion
Foundation Awards and a finalist in the
Melbourne Health Celebrating Excellence
Awards. Five Ways to Strengthen
Wellbeing is a free educational short
film that provides people of diverse
background different strategies to help
improve their well-being and deal with
modern day stressors.
The accolades extended beyond the
clinical sphere with Kevin McEwan,
Melbourne Health Transport and Fleet
Manager receiving the Australian Fleet
Managers Association 2014 Feet Manager
of the Year award. The award recognises
significant innovation, improvement and
cost reduction and effective management
of fleet operations.

She was also instrumental in establishing
the new RMH Foundation Advisory
Committee of the Board to inform
and encourage our fundraising and
philanthropic endeavours.
Following a four month period as the
interim Executive Director of Finance
and Logistics, George Kapitelli was
permanently appointed to the position
in September 2014. With extensive
commercial experience in the motor
industry in Australia and overseas,
Mr Kapitelli has proven an invaluable
asset to Melbourne Health.
We also extend a heartfelt and sincere
thank you to each and every one of the
418 active volunteers who selflessly gave
their time and energy to the organisation
throughout the year. From helping our
patients and visitors find their way around
the hospital to serving cups of tea, the
generosity and kindness of our volunteers
touch the lives of many.
In accordance with the Financial
Management Act 1994, we are pleased
to present the Report of Operations for
Melbourne Health for the year ending
30 June 2015.

We are incredibly proud of the
achievements of our staff.
Board and Executive acknowledgements
On behalf of the Melbourne Health Board
and Executive, we would like to thank
Professor Ruth Salom and Mr Tim Pitt,
whose tenure with our Board of Directors
ended on 30 June, for their commitment
and willingness to take on a number of
responsibilities and leadership roles. Under
Mr Pitt’s Chairmanship, the Primary
Care and Population Health Advisory
Committee has flourished and become a
positive avenue for Melbourne Health’s
key community partners to have a voice,
share ideas, and contribute to our vision
and the care we provide. Professor Salom’s
experience with the IT and Pathology
industries greatly assisted the Board with
its deliberations as we entered a crucial
phase in the Victoria Comprehensive
Cancer Centre initiative and its impact on
our ever growing precinct.

Mr Robert Doyle
Chairman
Melbourne
10 August 2015

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive
Melbourne
10 August 2015
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REPORT OF OPERATIONS
Board of Directors
Melbourne Health was established in
July 2000 under the Health Services Act
1988 (Victoria).
The Board comprises nine independent
non-executive directors. The Directors
are elected for a term of up to three years,
and may be re-elected to serve for up to
nine years.
The Board is accountable to the
Minister for Health. Its role is to exercise
governance in the achievement of
Melbourne Health’s objectives as detailed
in the Melbourne Health Strategic Plan
2010–15 and Melbourne Health Annual
Business Plan. This necessarily includes all
of the following:
• S etting the strategic direction and
priorities for Melbourne Health and
monitoring compliance
• A
 pproving financial and business, risk
and audit plans, and budgets to ensure
the accountable and efficient provision
of health services by Melbourne Health
and its long-term financial viability
• Th
 e establishment and maintenance
of effective systems to ensure the
health services provided meet the
needs of the communities served by
Melbourne Health
• M
 onitoring the performance of the
Chief Executive each financial year,
against agreed strategic plans
• Th
 rough the Chief Executive,
monitoring the effectiveness of
arrangements with other relevant
agencies and service providers to enable
effective and efficient health service
delivery and continuity of care
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• A
 dvising the Minister for Health and
the Secretary of the Department on
significant Board decisions and issues
of public concern, which may affect
Melbourne Health
• F
 acilitating health research and
education
• A
 dopting a code of conduct for staff
of Melbourne Health
• P
 roviding appropriate training for
Board directors and embedding regular
Board performance evaluation.
In December 2010, the Board endorsed the
Melbourne Health Corporate Governance
Framework, which provides an outline of
the key elements of corporate governance
structures at Melbourne Health.

The Directors for 2014/2015 were:
Mr Robert Doyle – Chairman
Mr Doyle was appointed Melbourne Health
Board Chairman in July 2007.
Mr Doyle is the Lord Mayor of
Melbourne and a Principal with The Nous
Group, a management consultancy firm.
Previously, he was a Member of Victoria’s
Parliament for 14 years. His roles included
the Leader of the Opposition and Leader
of the Liberal Party, Shadow Minister for
Health and, in government, Parliamentary
Secretary for Health.
Mr Bill Mountford
Mr Mountford was first appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in July 2007.
Mr Mountford is a part-time
Commissioner with the Victorian
Competition and Efficiency Commission,
a Director of Insight Economics Pty Ltd
and a consultant with Egon Zehnder
International. He has been a Partner
in Business Consulting at Arthur
Andersen, Director of the Australian
Manufacturing Council and CEO of the
Victorian WorkCover Authority, as well
an industrial policy adviser at state and
federal levels.
Mr Michael Gorton AM
Mr Gorton was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2008.
Mr Gorton is a Partner in a Melbourne
law firm, Russell Kennedy Lawyers,
and a board member of the Victorian
Equal Opportunity and Human
Rights Commission and the Agency
Management Committee of the
Australian Health Practitioner Regulation
Agency. Mr Gorton has been awarded
Honorary Fellowships with Royal
Australasian College of Surgeons and
Australian & New Zealand College of
Anaesthetists. He was made a Member
in the Order of Australia in 2004 for his
community contribution.

Mrs Jane Bell
Mrs Bell was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2009.
Mrs Bell is a banking and finance lawyer
who has worked in leading law firms,
financial services and corporate treasury
operations nationally and internationally.
Mrs Bell is currently a Director of
WorkSafe Victoria and Prince Henry’s
Institute of Medical Research and Deputy
Chair of Westernport Water Corporation.
Prof Ruth Salom
Prof Salom was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2012.
Prof Salom has over 20 years’ experience
working in health as a medical specialist
as well as a health and life science
manager. Prof Salom currently works
as Director of Pathology as well as a
consultant in health and life science.
Prof Salom was the inaugural Executive
Director of SA Pathology, where she was
responsible for forming a single pathology
service across seventeen South Australian
state hospitals. She is a Fellow of the Royal
Australasian College of Pathologists,
Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors and a graduate of the
Melbourne Business School MBA.
Mr Timothy Pitt
Mr Pitt was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2012.
Mr Pitt is a Plastic and Reconstructive
surgeon, based at the Epworth group.
He has served on multiple medical
advisory boards as member or chair to
public and private hospitals and on state
and national MACs. He continues to
teach and examine surgical trainees at
the Royal Australasian College of
Surgeons. He was awarded the Centenary
Medal for services to Medicine (2001).

Mr David Cartwright
Mr Cartwright was appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in December
2013.
Mr Cartwright is a Director of
Superpartners and a Global Partner
of ICG an international provider of
management consulting and project
execution services.
Previously Mr Cartwright served as
COO of the ANZ Banking Group,
CEO of iPSL (one of the largest UK
outsourcing businesses) and held
a number of senior domestic and
international executive roles within
Barclays PLC. He holds an MA/BA
in Natural Science (Chemistry) from
Oxford, is a Sloan Fellow of London
Business School, a GAICD and an
ACIB (UK).
Professor Stephen Smith
Prof Cartwright was appointed to the
Melbourne Health Board in July 2014
Prof Stephen Smith is the Dean, Faculty
of Medicine Dentistry and Health
Sciences at the University of Melbourne
and Chair of the Melbourne Academic
Centre for Health.
Previously Professor Smith served as Vice
President (Research) at the Nanyang
Technological University. A gynaecologist
by training, he was awarded his Doctor
of Science in 2001 for his work in
Cambridge on the complex gene pathways
that regulate the growth of blood vessels
in reproductive tissue

Board Committees
The Board has established a number
of sub-committees and advisory
committees, which are also attended
by members of the Melbourne Health
Executive. The Chairman is an ex-officio
of each committee.
Community Advisory Committee
Board membership: Mrs Jane Bell (Chair)
and members of the community in which
Melbourne Health operates.
Primary Care and Population Health
Advisory Committee
Board membership: Mr Tim Pitt (Chair)
and Mr David Cartwright
Audit Committee
Board membership: Mr Des Pearson
(Chair), Ms Jane Bell, Professor
Ruth Salom
Finance Committee
Board membership: Mr Bill Mountford
(Chair), Mr Michael Gorton AM,
Mr David Cartwright
Foundation Committee
Board membership: Ruth Salom (Chair)
Clinical Governance and Improvement
Committee (Quality Committee)
Board membership: Mr Michael Gorton
AM (Chair), Mr Bill Mountford,
Professor Ruth Salom, Mr Tim Pitt
Remuneration Committee
Board membership: Mr Robert Doyle
(Chair), Mrs Jane Bell, Mr Des Pearson

More information about Melbourne
Health’s Strategic Plan, Board
responsibilities and Director’s experience
can be found at www.thermh.org.au

Mr Desmond Pearson AO
Mr Pearson was appointed to the Melbourne
Health Board in July 2013.
Mr Pearson is a non-executive Director
and advisor on public sector governance,
accountability and performance reporting.
Previously he served as Auditor-General
of Victoria and Western Australia for
over 21 years. Prior to that he held
several executive positions in financial
management and corporate support
roles across Commonwealth, State and
Territory jurisdictions.
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Melbourne Health at a Glance
Our City campus provides general and
specialist medical and surgical acute
services. Sub-acute services, including
rehabilitation and aged care, outpatient
and community programs are provided
from our Royal Park campus.

We are a leading public health service
in Victoria with a history of providing
the best possible care for our patients
and consumers. We are committed to
applying evidence based research to drive
improvements in clinical outcomes and
healthcare experience. With a focus on
teaching and education, we encourage
lifelong learning to enable our people
to realise their potential.

The Royal Melbourne Hospital plays
a key role within the broader Victorian
health sector as a major Victorian referral
service for specialist and complex care
being a designated state-wide provider
for services including trauma. It also
contains centres of excellence for tertiary
services in several key specialties including
neurosciences, nephrology, oncology,
cardiology and genomics.

Serving a population base of over 1
million, our world-class reputation has
its beginnings in The Royal Melbourne
Hospital – Victoria’s first public hospital
– established in 1848 to answer the need
for public health services for a rapidly
growing town. For more than 167 years,
we have provided a comprehensive range
of acute, sub-acute and community public
health services to our local community
within Melbourne’s west and north, and
as well as regional and rural Victorians
and interstate patients and consumers.

NorthWestern Mental Health – our
mental health service
As the largest provider of mental health
services in Victoria, NorthWestern
Mental Health works in partnership
with consumers and carers to provide
a comprehensive suite of general and
specialist services to youth, adult and
aged people within the community,
residential and health services.

Today we provide care through three
key services:
The Royal Melbourne Hospital
– our acute and sub-acute academic
health service
As one of the largest hospitals in Victoria,
The Royal Melbourne Hospital in
Parkville provides a comprehensive range
of health services across two campuses.

Services are delivered through six
programs spanning 24 sites across
the northern and western suburbs of
Melbourne reaching communities based
in Broadmeadows to the north, Preston
to the east and Sunshine to the west.

It also delivers a number of state-wide
services including the neuropsychiatry
service and the eating disorders service.
The Doherty Institute for Infection
and Immunity – our infection and
immunity service
The Doherty Institute, our partnership
with the University of Melbourne,
aims to be a world-class institute that
combines research into infectious disease
and immunity with teaching excellence,
reference laboratory diagnostic services,
epidemiology and clinical services. Our
services at The Doherty Institute include:
• Th
 e Victorian Infectious Diseases
Reference Laboratory
• V
 ICNISS Healthcare Associated
Infection Surveillance System
• Th
 e Victorian Infectious
Diseases Service
• The Victorian Tuberculosis Program
• N
 ational Centre for Antimicrobial
Stewardship
• W
 orld Health Organisation
Collaborating Centre for Reference
and Research on Influenza

Melbourne Health Catchments & Services
Legend
NWMH (Adult Area Mental Health Service)
NWMH (Aged Persons’ Mental Health Service)
Whittlesea

NWMH (Youth Mental Health Service)
NWMH – All programs NWMH

Hume
Nillumbik

Catchment

H The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Melton
Moonee Valley

Moreland
Brimbank

RMH Primary Catchment
Darebin

Banyule

H
Maribrynong

Melbourne

Wyndham
Hobsons Bay
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RMH Secondary Catchment

Melbourne Health Organisational Structure as at 30 June 2015

Melbourne Health Board
Lisa McKenzie, Chief of Staff ^^^
Chief Executive, Dr Gareth Goodier

Kelly Skene, Director, Strategy & Planning
Fiona Watson, Director, Transformation & Quality Planning

Executive Director
The Royal Melbourne
Hospital
Dr David Alcorn

• Cardiovascular, Renal & Endocrine • Outpatients
• Surgery, Perioperative, Trauma
Services
& Surgical Oncology
• Critical Care & Investigative Services
• Access
• Medicine & Community Care
• Outpatients
• Information & Performance

• Neurosciences, Haematology,
Medical Oncology &
Infectious Diseases

• Medical Governance
• Transformation & Quality
• Collaborative Framework

• Medical Education
• Medicolegal
• Staff Clinic

• VICNISS
• VIDRL

• Business Development
• Capital Works
• Commercial Operations*

• Facilities Management
• Health Sciences Library
• Information Technology
• Information Project
Management

• Infrastructure Services
• Legal Counsel
• Retail

• People Management & Operations
• Employee Relations
• Employee Services & Remuneration

• Organisational Development
• Occupational Health &
Wellbeing

• Workforce Planning
& Recruitment

• Allied Health
• Clinical Policies & Procedures
• Emergency Management
Planning

• Nurse Bank
• Nurse Education
• Nursing Workforce Unit

• Professor of Nursing –
Translational Research^^
• Associate Professor
Emergency Nursing
• Professional Nursing Practice

• Finance Services*
• Financial Systems*
• Procurement

• Contract Management
• Supply & Logistics

Mr George Kapitelli

• Financial Performance & Analysis
• Financial Business Management
• Financial Reporting and Auditing

Executive Director
Communications &
Community Relations

• Community Engagement
• Volunteer Service
• Values and Culture

• Public Affairs & Media
• Archives

• The Royal Melbourne
Hospital Foundation

• Northern AMHS
• North West AMHS

• Aged Persons’ MHP
• Orygen Youth Health

• Research Funding
• Research Governance

• Research Grants
• Research Staff

Executive Director
Clinical Governance &
Medical Services
Dr Peter Bradford
Executive Director
Corporate & Information
Services
Mrs Sally Campbell
Executive Director
Human Resources &
Organisational Development
Ms Christine Fitzherbert
Executive Director
Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre

• Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre

Ms Di Gill
Executive Director
Nursing Services & Allied
Health
A/Prof Denise Heinjus
Executive Director
Finance & Logistics

Ms Sharon McGowan
Executive Director
• Inner West AMHS^
NorthWestern Mental Health • Mid West AMHS
A/Prof Ruth Vine
Executive Director Research
Prof Ingrid Winship
* Shared resource

^

• Research Advisory Council
• Human Research Ethics
Committee

Area Mental Health Service

^^

Until 30 November 2014

^^^

From 11 August 2014
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Our Clinical Services
Cardiovascular, Renal
& Endocrine Services
Cardiology
Cardiac Surgery
Thoracic Surgery
Vascular Surgery
Dialysis
Nephrology
Renal Transplant
Renal Surgery
Diabetes
Endocrinology
Diabetes Foot Service
Bone Mineral Service
Metabolic Service
Critical Care & Investigative Services
Pharmacy
Emergency
Imaging
Breastscreen
Intensive Care Unit
Pathology
Medical Illustration
Organ Donation
Medicine & Community Care
Addiction Medicine
Department of Aged Care
Aged Care Assessment Service
Assessment & Planning Unit
Community Partnerships Unit
Hospital Admission Risk Program
Hospital In The Home
In Reach
Gardenview House
Case Management
General Medicine
Sub Acute Ambulatory Care Service
Transition Care Program
Respiratory Medicine & Sleep Disorders

Surgery, Perioperative, Trauma
& Surgical Oncology
Anaesthetics
Ear, Nose & Throat and Head
& Neck Oncology
Gastroenterology
Special Surgery
Oral & Maxillofacial
Orthopaedics
Pain Management
Perioperative Services
Plastics
Trauma
Colorectal Medicine
Urology
Breast Service
Neurosciences, Haematology, Medical
Oncology & Infectious Diseases
Dermatology
Immunology
Neurology
Neurosurgery
Ophthalmology
Rehabilitation
Rheumatology
Victorian Infectious Diseases Service
Haematology
Medical Oncology
Bone Marrow Transplant
Familial Cancer Centre/Genetic Medicine
Palliative Care
Infection Prevention and Surveillance
Service (stopped reporting as of 30 June)
NorthWestern Mental Health
Integrated Community Teams – Adult
Assessment & Treatment Planning – Aged
Prevention and Recovery Care (PARC)
Services – Adult
Youth Access Teams – Youth
Continuing Care Teams – Youth
Eating Disorders – Inpatients,
Outpatients, Statewide Training and
Education
Inpatient Treatment – Youth, Adult
and Aged
Neuropsychiatry – Inpatients
& Outpatients

Rehabilitation, Community Care Units,
Secure Extended Care – Adult
Residential Care – Adult & Aged
Substance Use & Mental
Health Treatment
Mental Health Triage Service
Allied Health
Audiology
Aboriginal Health Services
Facial Prosthetics
Music Therapy
Nutrition
Occupational Therapy
Pastoral Care
Physiotherapy & Exercise Physiology
Podiatry
Prosthetics & Orthotics
Psychology
Social Work
Speech Pathology
Transcultural & Interpreting Services
University of Melbourne Chairs
Cato Professor of Psychiatry
Professor Ian Everall
Edgar Rouse Professor of Radiology
Professor Trish Desmond
James Stewart Professor of Medicine
Professor Terence O’Brien
James Stewart Professor of Surgery
Professor Andrew Kaye
Professor of Adult Clinical Genetics
Professor Ingrid Winship
Professor of Epidemiology, Biostatistics
and Health Services Research
Professor Danny Liew
Professor of Nursing
– Translational Research
Professor Nick Santamaria*
Professor of Translational Neuroscience
Professor Stephen Davis
Australian Catholic University Chair
Professor of Mental Health Nursing
Professor Brian McKenna
La Trobe University Chair
Professor of Allied Health
A/Prof Kate Webster
*Until 30 November 2014
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Significant Supporters
The Royal Melbourne Hospital Foundation acknowledges the following significant support:
Major Contributions
Allanby Press
Alphapharm
Barrett Baxter Bye
Baxter Healthcare Pty Ltd
Bendigo Property Services
BG Flowers
Carman’s
Century 101 Pty Ltd
Ckaos
Cob’s Popcorn
EFM Health Clubs
GM Holden Ltd
LaManna Direct
Medikane Pty Ltd
Neuroscience Foundation
Plan B Services
Preshafood
Primitus Jan Nominees Pty Ltd
RMH Dialysis Support Group
Mrs Ofelia Aguiar
Mr John Aidone
Ms Betty Amsden, AO
Mr Graeme Blair
Miss Margaret Bowman
Mr Stefan & Mrs Nevenka Bradica
Mr Andrew Brookes &
Mrs Robina Brookes
Ms Josephine Cardale
Mrs Kwai Han Choi JP
Mrs Sue Clifton
Prof. Peter Colman
Mr Giuliano Contento
Mr Mike & Mrs Midge Crisp
Mrs June Danks
Dr Abe & Mrs Vera Dorevitch
Dr Marjorie Dunlop
Mr Chamel Eldannawi
Mr Neville Elliott
Mr Zelman Elton
Mr Allan Excell
Mr Graham Feldtmann
Mrs Rita Ferguson
Mr Joseph & Mrs Sara Franck
Dr John & Mrs Diana Frew
Ms Melissa Fuller
The late Mrs Neilma Gantner
Mr George Gilbertson
Mr Peter & Mrs Rae Gunn
Mr Robert Harrison
Mrs Barbara Haynes, OAM
Dr Margaret Henderson, OBE
Mr Clair Herft
The late Mrs Norah Houston
Mrs Cam Huynh
Mr James Jacoby
Mr G Jorgenson
Mr Mark & Mrs Sara Kagan
Mrs Silvia & Mr Michael Kantor

Mrs Stavroula Karantonis
Mr John & Mrs Betty Laidlaw
A/Prof Katherine Leslie
Ms Laura Lewis
Mr David Liou
Mr Nunzio Lucarelli
Mr Simon McKeon, AO
Mrs Jocelyn Mead
Mr Baillieu Myer, AC
& Mrs Sarah Myer
Mr Bernard Mylon
A/Prof Louisa Ng
Thanh Huan Nguyen
Mr Donald Packenham
Mr David Phillips
Ms Janice Pleydell
Ms Nancy Price
Mr Barry & Mrs Kaye Ridley
Mr Giovanni Sannia
Mr Raminder Sarna
Dr Robyn Smiles
Ms Carol Soderstrom
Lady Marigold Southey, AC
Mr Joel Spence
Mr Grant Stephenson
Mr Laurence Stewart
Ms Estelle Stott
Ms Diane Sullivan
Ms Marlene Suter
Mr John Taylor
Ms Linda Tivendale
Mrs Pamela Waldron
Mr James & Mrs Jayne Webster
Mr Richard Wynne
Mr Peter Zwar

Corporate Partners

Community Supporters

Cannon Toyota
Cerner Australia
City of Melbourne
Clear Music
Commonwealth Bank
CSL Limited
DeBortoli Wines
Dr DAX Kitchen
First State Super
G&C Mutual Bank
Glenvill
Gold 104.3
Grocon PCL
Healthscope
Hybrid Expression
Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Medtronic
Reid Healthcare
Russell Kennedy Lawyers
S.O. Asher
Smartsalary
STAR
Summit Fleet Leasing & Management
The Peter Doherty Institute for
Infection & Immunity
The University of Melbourne
Zouki

Australian Chinese Events Committee
BMW Group
Carolyn Nguyen & Family
Mrs Melissa Chen
Mrs Sarah Cherry
Chinese Masonic Society
The Fastuca Family
Friends of The Royal
Melbourne Hospital
La Trobe University & Yarra Valley
Hockey Clubs
Matty’s Soldiers
Ms Gillian McCarthy
Mrs Monique Respini
Mr Campbell Stevenson
Mr Nick Tesch
Ms Jenny Wilkinson

Trusts & Foundations
Dry July Limited
Esso Australia (Exxon Mobil)
Fight Cancer Foundation
Guthrie Family Charitable Trust
Hugh Williamson Foundation
Ian Potter Foundation
Intensive Care Academic Fund
Knight Family Fund
Lord Mayors Charitable Foundation
National Australia Bank
Shirley & David Secomb Fund
State Trustees Australia Foundation
Tour de Cure
William Buckland Foundation
William Murray Solicitors

Estates and Gifts in Will
Estate of E C Blackwood
– Charitable Trust
Estate of Mary Evelyn Bowley
– Charitable Trust
Estate of Colin Archibald Campbell
Estate of Henrietta Lucy Cherry
Estate of Agnes Ferguson Clark
Estate of Alfred Herman
William Dehnert
Estate of Dorothy Winifred Dike
Estate of Irene Daisy Dike
Estate of Ethel Mary Drummond
Estate of G L Godfree
Estate of Gregory William Heard
Estate of Joseph Herman
– Charitable Trust
Estate of Miles Hurley
Estate of Douglas Allan Leslie Inglis
Estate of Doris & Rupert Joseph
– Charitable Trust
Estate of John Lambrick
– Charitable Trust
Estate of Joseph & Kate Levi
Estate of Arthur Blannin Lyndhurst
Estate of William Macrow
Estate of Vera Estella Male
Estate of Helen Owens
Estate of Thomas B Payne
– 80000 Fund
Estate of Giovanna
& Luigi Romagnano
Estate of Anne Christine Simpson
Estate of Lesley Margot Stevenson
Estate of Douglas James Thomson
Estate of George Warren Thornton
Werge Batters Perpetual
Charitable Fund
Estate of Emily Vera Winder
Estate of John Frederick Wright
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Occupational Health, Safety & Wellbeing
Melbourne Health has proactively
implemented a range of initiatives to
continue to improve safety, health and
wellbeing and reduce the potential for
risk for all staff.
Melbourne Health has continued to
develop and enhance its Occupational
Health and Safety Management
System, as well as identify strategies
for injury prevention, enhanced health
and wellbeing and improved injury
management outcomes.

Key initiatives implemented during the
2014/2015 financial year include:

• Developing online training programs

• Th
 e addition of a Manual Handling
Project Coordinator to the OHS
team to focus on identifying methods
of reducing the risk of sustaining a
musculoskeletal disorder in non-clinical
work environments.
• I mproving consultation and
communication processes for
OHS issues

• I ntroducing of a range of health
and wellbeing programs including:
Psychological First Aid, Diabetes
Awareness, the Healthy Choices food
labelling program, enhancing our Peer
Support Program
• D
 eveloping an Anti-Bullying
Awareness Campaign
WorkCover performance
– Melbourne Health’s WorkCover
performance rate for 2014/15 is better
than the industry average.

Melbourne Health Employees 2014/2015
Labour Category

JUNE
Current Month FTE
2014

2015

2014

2015

Administration/Clerical

1049.44

1095.74

1061.48

1067.81

Allied Health

577.95

565.47

570.59

566.78

HMO's

607.52

616.36

606.17

610.88

Hotel/Allied

346.31

341.96

383.95

339.52

Medical

118.19

120.33

124.89

120.68

Medical Support

727.07

723.71

722.85

717.68

2422.14

2433.54

2408.72

2418.45

179.84

191.50

180.14

188.16

6028.45

6088.61

6058.77

6029.97

Nursing
Sessional Clinical
Total

JUNE
YTD FTE (Average)

WorkCover Performance 2008/09 to 2014/2015
0.35

200

0.30
160

69

47

51

0.25

120

26

25

9

23

80

116

128

0.20
0.15

119
95

109

93

101

0.10

40
0.05
0.00

0
2008/09
Number of standard claims

2009/10
Number of minor claims
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2010/11

2011/12
Claim per $ million of remuneration

2012/13

2013/14

Claim cost per $ million remuneration

2014/15

General Information
Carers Recognition Act 2012
At Melbourne Health we understand
that our patients and clients, their
families and carers need to play an active
role in their healthcare. They want to
make meaningful decisions about their
treatment, feel empowered to question
and work with us to improve the quality
and safety of our services.
We take all practicable measures to ensure
our employees and agents reflect the care
relationship principles in developing,
providing or evaluating support and
assistance for persons in care relationships.
One measure is the development of the
Melbourne Health Partnerships in Care
strategy that embodies the principals of
person-centred care and articulates how
Melbourne Health will achieve this.
One example of how we are embedding
these principals is the cultural
responsiveness and customer service
training in place for our clinical and
frontline staff. That includes paying special
attention to carers’ own needs e.g. when
advising on options for patient treatment.
Melbourne Health reports on its
participation indicators and priority
actions in the Department of Health and
Human Services Doing it with us not
for us participation policy in the annual
Quality of Care Report. That report is
available on our website at www.thermh.
org.au and also is distributed in hardcopy
throughout Melbourne Health and our
service catchment area.
Requests for print versions can be
made to: Transformation and Quality,
The Royal Melbourne Hospital.

Privacy
Melbourne Health is committed to
protecting the privacy of
its patients and clients. The organisation
is required by law to protect personal
and confidential information such as
information about an individual’s health
and other personal details. Melbourne
Health complies with all applicable
legislation relating to confidentiality and
privacy, including, where relevant, the
Health Services Act, Mental Health Act
and the Health Records Act. Melbourne
Health’s Privacy Policy is available in
hardcopy and online at
www.thermh.org.au

More information about Melbourne
Health can be found on our website:
www.thermh.org.au, including how we
manage FOI requests, publications, and
other material that can be inspected by
the public.
Freedom of Information
applications

Melbourne
Health

Received during year
In progress at beginning of year

2087
297

Granted in full

1775

Granted in part

73

Withdrawn

79

Denied

6

Freedom of Information

In progress

The Freedom of Information Act 1982
provides a legally enforceable right of
public access to information held by
government agencies. All applications
made to Melbourne Health under the
Freedom of Information Act 1982, were
processed in accordance with that Act.
Melbourne Health provides a report
on these requests to the Freedom of
Information Commissioner. Applications
and requests for information about
making applications, under the Act can
be made to:

Transferred to another service

0

Transferred from another service

1

No record

2

Postal Applications
Freedom of Information Officer
Health Information Services
Post Office
ROYAL MELBOURNE HOSPITAL
VICTORIA 3050
Hand delivery
Freedom of Information Officer
Health Information Services
The Royal Melbourne Hospital
– City Campus
300 Grattan Street
PARKVILLE VICTORIA 3050
Telephone: (03) 9342 7781
Facsimile: (03) 9342 8008
Email: FOIrequest@mh.org.au

173

Preventing detrimental action
Melbourne Health is committed to
extend the protections under the
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (Vic)
to individuals who make protected
disclosures under that Act or who
cooperate with investigations into
protected disclosures. The policy and
procedure are available to all staff on
the Melbourne Health Intranet site and
to the public on www.thermh.org.au
Merit and Equity Principles
Merit and equity principles are
encompassed in all employment
and diversity management activities
throughout Melbourne Health.
Melbourne Health is an equal
opportunity employer and is committed
to providing for its employees a work
environment which is free of harassment
or discrimination together with an
environment that is safe and without risk
to health.
Melbourne Health’s employees are
committed to our values and behaviours
as the principles of employment and
conduct.
Melbourne Health promotes cultural
diversity and awareness in the workplace.
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Competitive Neutrality
Melbourne Health continues to comply
with the Victorian Government’s
Competitive Neutrality Policy. In
addition, the Victorian Government’s
Competitive Neutrality pricing principles
have been applied by Melbourne
Health from 1 July 2000 for all relevant
business activities.
Victorian Industry Participation Policy
Melbourne Health complies with
the intent of the Victorian Industry
Participation Policy Act 2003. The aim
of this legislation is to expand market
opportunities to Victorians, and indeed
Australian organisations and therefore
promote employment and business growth
in the State.
For tenders and resulting contracts with
a value of $3 million or more, Melbourne
Health applies VIPP specific evaluation
criteria. These criteria assess:
• Level of local content
• Number of newly created or existing
jobs retained
• Training, skills development and
technology transfer.
The assessment of these criteria in
conjunction with other tender specific
assessment criteria leads to the selection
of the best possible product and service
for the expenditure. It also ensures those
organisations that provide quality local
products and/or services are recognised
and promoted as per the policy.
Within the past 12 months, Melbourne
Health commenced one metropolitan
based contract for which the VIPP
applied. This contract was for the
provision of an Enterprise Content
Management System and was valued
at $3,290,000. As result of this contract,
56% local content was committed; one
existing job and two existing traineeships
were retained; and technology transfer
and training in the use of an electronic
health records system was committed.

Building Act 1993
Melbourne Health complies wholly with
the building and maintenance provisions
of the Building Act 1993.
Melbourne Health has obtained Building
Permits for new projects and Certificates
of Occupancy or Certificates of Final
Inspection for all completed projects.
Registered Building Practitioners have
been involved with all new building works
projects and were supervised by either the
relevant Construction Manager in liaison
with Melbourne Health Capital Projects
and or Independent Project Managers.
Each building practitioner has supplied
the required Building Registration
Number. Building contractors include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

MAW Building and Maintenance
Dovagate
Grocon
DNA co
Pirotta
Renascent

In order to maintain buildings in a
safe and serviceable condition, routine
inspections were undertaken. Where
required, Melbourne Health proceeded
to implement the highest priority
recommendations arising out of those
inspections through planned rectification
and maintenance works.
Building certified for approved design
phase – under construction
RMH City Campus
• VCCC North Side works including
Hybrid theatre
• Level 6 roof top garden
• Diabetes educators relocation from
Wreckyn Street to RMH CC
• PC3 lab
• Replacement 1.5T MRI in public
radiology
• Purge mode heap filtration
• Lift Upgrade
• Radiology Biplane installation
• Pet scanner feasibility report
• Stroke Unit feasibility
• Behavioural Unit
NWMH
• Northern CCU redevelopment
• Wood Street CCU upgrade
Renal
• Essendon Fields Dialysis Unit
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Certified/final inspection
RMH City Campus
• CT replacement project
• Sim Lab
• Business Intelligence Unit
• IPPS relocation to 9 North
• Volunteer Reception desk
• Outpatient Floor Replacement
• New 3T MRI in Private radiology
• Ophthalmology room Upgrade
• Pathology consolidation
• MRI Central booking office
RMH Royal Park Campus
• AC1 single rooms
• Electrical Upgrade
• HWA
• Gardenview secure unit
• B5 Refurbishment
NorthWestern Mental Health
• Community Hub at RMH RPC
• Weighbridge Fire Upgrade
• Ligature Safety Upgrades
• John Cade Unit Conference Room
Environmental performance
This past year, Melbourne Health
held several events and initiatives to
promote environmental sustainability
and waste management among staff,
visitors and patients.
A Spring Clean Day held in September
was well attended by staff and volunteers.
They scoured the immediate precinct
and buildings to remove litter with
75kg of litter collected at the City Campus
and 40kg at Royal Park. In November,
an Environment and Sustainability Expo
was held and our suppliers, green teams
and non-governmental organisations
were invited to showcase their
sustainability efforts.
As a result of promoting our ‘Think Green’
vision, 95 Green Champions from various
Melbourne Health sites have nominated
themselves to lead initiatives in their areas.
The Intensive Care Unit Environment
Group was awarded the inaugural Think
Green Award in December for their waste
reduction efforts.
For more information on our
environmental performance, refer to
our annual sustainability report which
will be available on the RMH website
in October 2015.

Additional Information
Details in respect to the items listed below
have been retained by Melbourne Health
and are available to the relevant Ministers,
members of Parliament and the public
upon request (subject to the Freedom of
Information requirements, if applicable):
(a)	A statement of pecuniary interest;
(b)	Details of shares held by senior officers
as nominee or held beneficially in a
statutory authority or subsidiary;
(c)	Details of publications produced by
Melbourne Health about our activities
and where they can be obtained;
(d)	Details of changes in prices, fees,
charges, rates and levies charged by
Melbourne Health;
(e)	Details of any major external reviews
carried out on Melbourne Health;

(f)	Details of major research and
development activities undertaken
by Melbourne Health that are not
otherwise covered either in the Report
of Operations or in a document that
contains the financial report and
Report of Operations;
(g)	Details of overseas visits undertaken
including a summary of the objectives
and outcomes of each visit;
(h)	Details of major promotional, public
relations and marketing activities
undertaken to develop community
awareness of Melbourne Health and
its services;

(j)	A general statement on industrial
relations within the entity and details
of time lost through industrial
accidents and disputes, which is not
otherwise detailed in the Report of
Operations;
(k)	A list of major committees sponsored
by Melbourne Health, the purposes
of each committee and the extent
to which the purposes have been
achieved;
(l)	Details of all consultancies and
contractors including those engaged,
services provided and expenditure
committed to for each engagement.

(i)	Details of assessments and
measures undertaken to improve
the occupational health and safety
of employees;

Consultancies 2014/15
Total Approved
Project Fee
(exc. GST)
($’000)

Expenditure
2014/15
(exc. GST)
($’000)

Future
Expenditure
(exc. GST)
($’000)

Consultant

Purpose of Consultancy

57 DPTS Pty Ltd

Review of Radiology Service

18

18

-

Advectas Australia Pty Ltd

Management Information System

39

39

-

Belinda Helen Caldwell

Carer Support Strategy

15

15

-

Biruu Health Pty Ltd

Capital Redevelopment Strategy

29

29

-

Cognitive Consulting Group Pty Ltd

Safety and Reliability Program

50

50

-

Converge International Incorporating
Resolutionsrtk Pty Ltd

Employee Assistance Program

57

57

-

David Paul Raoul Doukidis

Bioinformatic Computer Programs

17

17

-

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Internal Audit

655

519

655

Dwb Trust

OHS Health & Welfare Investigation

11

11

-

Flexible Learning Network Limited

Learning Management System

20

20

-

Full Circle Feedback Pty Ltd

360 Degree Feedback

63

63

-

Geoffrey Ian Goodall

Biochemistry Consultancy

10

10

-

Independent Pharmacy Consulting Pty Ltd

Inventory Management

30

30

-

ISOFT Australia Pty Ltd

Patient Administration System
Implementation Planning Study

72

72

-

KPMG

Parkville Electronic Medical Records
Business Case

29

29

-

La Trobe University

Chief Executive Collaborative Framework

20

20

-

Litmus Group Pty Ltd

Procurement Spend Analytics

27

27

-

Mercer Consulting (Australia) Pty Ltd

Human Resource Advice

21

21

-

Nicholas Charles Chrimes

Inter-Professional Video Learning

10

10

-

SO Asher Consultants Pty Ltd

Fundraising

1041

1041

1099

Victoria University

Australian Research Council Linkage Project

10

10

-

In 2014-15, Melbourne Health engaged 34 consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000, with a total expenditure of $84,987.63 (exc. GST).
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Financial Summary
Melbourne Health’s operating result
before capital and specific items of
$1.5m deficit is in line with Statement of
Priorities target of $1.5m deficit.
Net Result for the year was $28.2m
deficit which compares unfavourably to a
surplus Net Result achieved in 2013–14.
The deterioration resulted from lower
capital grants received during 2014–15
and funding for Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre being provided in the form
of contributed capital.

Total Revenue increased $51.8m from
2013–14 with proportionate increase
in expenditure.
Melbourne Health’s focus is to grow its
revenue and develop organisation-wide
cost savings initiatives in order to achieve
financial sustainability which will drive
future investment into providing the best
clinical care for our patients.

Melbourne Health Financial Summary 2014/15
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Total Revenue

965,346

913,535

896,883

876,037

834,855

Total Expenses

966,876

913,236

896,262

876,387

837,453

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before capital and specific items

(1,530)

299

621

(350)

(2,598)

Capital and Specific Items

(26,717)

3,654

(31,995)

(26,239)

(31,573)

Net Result for the Year

(28,247)

3,953

(31,374)

(26,589)

(34,171)

Retained Surplus / (Deficit)

(160,596)

(127,979)

(159,286)

(134,214)

(99,475)

Total Assets

807,832

793,388

626,070

639,827

615,775

Total Liabilities

273,301

284,534

259,880

245,077

214,042

Net Assets

534,531

508,854

366,190

394,750

401,733

Total Equity

534,531

508,854

366,190

394,750

401,733
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KEY FINANCIAL & SERVICE
PERFORMANCE REPORTING
Statement of Priorities
The Statement of Priorities is the key accountability agreement between Melbourne
Health and the Victorian Minister for Health. This annual agreement ensures delivery
of, or substantial progress towards, the key shared objectives of improved access and
quality of services and financial viability. The Statement of Priorities is published
annually on the website of the Department of Health and Human Services.
Part A: Strategic Priorities for 2014/15
PRIORITY

ACTION

DELIVERABLE

OUTCOME

Developing a system
that is responsive to
people’s needs

Implement formal advance care
planning structure and processes that
provide patients with opportunities
to develop, review and have their
expressed preferences for future
treatment and care enacted.

End of Life Care Plan developed
and key activities implemented
within the end of life care strategy.

Completed.

Configure and distribute services to
address the health needs of the local
population.

Strategic partners identified and
model for redevelopment developed
and agreed.

Completed.

Actively collaborative with partners
to implement the vision of the
Victorian Comprehensive Cancer
Centre.

Clinical Divisions actively engaged
with the Victorian Comprehensive
Cancer Centre Project Team
and the agreed Cancer Clinical
Services Operating Model will be
implemented across the precinct.

Completed.

Use consumer feedback to
improve person and family centred
care, health service practice and
patient experience.

Partnerships in Care Committee
established, 12 month action plan
approved under the new Partnerships
in Care strategy. Training module
updated to reflect new strategy.

Completed.

Support local implementation of
the Victorian Health and Wellbeing
Plan 2011–2015 through
collaboration with key partners such
as Local Government, Medicare
Locals, community health services
and other agencies.

Outcomes implemented on
collaborative projects in line with
work plan agreed through the
Collaborative Framework.

Completed.

Embed Safety First, Melbourne
Health’s long term project to actively
promote and strengthen safety
performance, across the organisation.

Implement the actions articulated in
the 2014/15 Safety First Action Plan.

Completed.

Respond to changes to the Mental
Health Act 2014.

Project plan is reviewed, local plans
have been developed and actions
implemented.

Completed.

Improving every
Victorian’s health status
& experiences

A final report regarding End of Life Care/Advance
Care Planning activities was provided to the
Department of Health and Human Services.
Work will continue to achieve improvements with
resources allocated.
Preliminary discussions with potential partners for
service and redevelopment of The Royal Melbourne
Hospital campuses continue with scoping of the
next program of work completed.
Committees established with representations
from clinical divisions. Draft models of care have
been developed; to be finalised pending Service
Director appointment.

Partnerships in Care Strategy launched and
Committee established, 12 month action
plan completed with work continuing on the
training module.
Work plan 2014/15 was developed with
collaborative partners, with activities completed and
outcomes achieved.
Support provided to the Melbourne Primary Health
Network in their successful bid.
Action plan implemented for 2014/15.

Supported decision making framework embedded
across NWMH services. Changes to, statutory
documentation, and tribunal hearing processes have
been made across NWMH.
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Part A: Strategic Priorities for 2014/15 cont.
PRIORITY

ACTION

DELIVERABLE

OUTCOME

Expanding service,
workforce and system
capacity

Develop and implement a
workforce immunisation plan that
includes pre-employment screening
and immunisation assessment for
existing staff that work in high
risk areas in order to align with
Australian infection control and
immunisation guidelines.

Review new and existing workforce
assessment processes, develop plan
and implement.

In Progress.

Reduce unplanned readmissions.

Policies assessed and
recommendations implemented
through a review of the current
Estimated Date of Discharge,
ward agreements and ward
round processes.

In Progress.

Optimise workforce productivity
through identification and
implementation of workforce models
that enhance individual and team
capacity and support flexibility.

Implementation of the Victorian
Comprehensive Cancer Centre
Workforce Transition Plan
progressed with affected Peter Mac
and Melbourne Health employees
transferred to their new roles.

In Progress.

Increasing the system’s
financial sustainability
and productivity

Reduce health service
administrative costs.

New Strategic Procurement function
established to operationalise
Procurement Excellence Program.

Completed.

Implementing
continuous
improvements and
innovation

Develop a focus on ‘systems
thinking’ to drive improved
integration and networking across
health care settings

Implement Outpatient
Transformation Project inclusive of
redesign of referral process, fostering
relationships with primary care and
improving the patient experience.

In Progress.

Continue to commit resources
to support the first phase
implementation of the Parkville
Pathology Service.

On Hold.

Developed and implemented
a central coordination and
support mechanism service
for Melbourne Partners.

Completed.

Existing Board assessment process
reviewed and enhanced.

Completed.

Strategic Plan developed
and launched.

Completed.

Enhance translational research across
the Parkville Precinct.

Increasing accountability Undertake an annual board
& transparency
assessment to identify and develop
board capability to ensure all
board members are well equipped
to effectively discharge their
responsibilities.
Develop and roll out a new vision,
values, strategic plan and name for
Melbourne Health.

Review of the Melbourne Health
values completed.
Improving utilisation
of e-health and
communications
technology

Immunisation coordinator appointed to drive the
work program. Gap analysis completed and high
risk staff identified.

Multi-disciplinary approach developed for
discharge planning. Estimated Date of Discharge
ward agreements and ward rounding implemented
across Melbourne Health. Program will continue
into 2015–16.
Transition plan developed and actioned
in conjunction with VCCC partners. A
VCCC Parkville Workforce Operations Group
has been established to specifically oversee the
implementation of the VCCC Workforce
Transition Strategy.
Restructure of the procurement function completed
with the Procurement Activity Plan established.
Outpatient work plan completed. Work is
underway in conjunction with GP liaison and
Health Pathway services, to review current
referral processes. This will coincide with the new
Electronic Content Management system.
Parkville Pathology service model is on hold,
awaiting resolution on next steps with the DHHS
and Precinct partners.
Central coordination support service developed
with a Research Support Officer appointed.

Board assessment processes reviewed.

Transforming Health: Melbourne Health Strategic
Plan 2015–2020 and vision was internally launched
on the first of July following extensive consultation.
Proposed external release within 2015.
Completed.
A values review was completed with a refresh rolled
out on the first of July.

Trial, implement and evaluate
strategies that use e-health as an
enabler of better patient care.

Balanced reporting and
analysis that supports key
business roles and facilitates
end user adoption developed.

In Progress.

Ensure local ICT strategic plans are
in place.

Costed ICT architecture and
resource strategy developed to
support the precinct eMR.

Completed.
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A suite of reporting tools targeting KPI reporting
have been developed and promoted across
Melbourne Health. Ongoing development and
refinement is scheduled during 2015–16.
ICT concept and strategy supported by
Parkville precinct members. The next steps for
an eMR are agreed within the 2015–16 shared
Precinct program.

Part B: Performance Priorities
Safety and quality performance
Note: Mental Health – 28 day readmission rate, Post discharge follow up rate
and Seclusion rate per occupied bed days data has been obtained from the
Performance Indicator Report from DHHS.

Access performance
Note: Emergency indicators are to be reported at campus/hospital level and
waiting list as at 30 June 2015

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

TARGET

2014/15
ACTUALS

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

Patient experience and outcomes
Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey1

Full compliance

Full compliance

Healthcare associated infection
surveillance

No outliers

No outliers

Emergency care
Percentage of operating time on hospital
bypass

ICU central line associated blood stream
infections (ICU CLABSI)

No outliers

No outliers

SAB rate per occupied bed days

< 2/10,000

1

Mental health – 28 day readmission rate

14

15

Mental health – Post-discharge follow
up rate

75%

88%

Mental health – Seclusion rate per
occupied bed days

< 15/1,000

11

80%

2

Governance, leadership and culture
Patient safety culture

2.5%

Percentage of Triage Category 1
emergency patients seen immediately

100%

100%

Percentage of Triage Category 1 to 5
emergency patients seen within clinically
recommended times

80%

75.5%

81%

60.5%

86%

NEAT – Percentage of emergency
presentations to physically leave the
emergency department for admission to
hospital, be referred to another hospital
for treatment, or be discharged within
four hours
Number of patients with a length of stay
in the emergency department greater
than 24 hours

0

0

Full compliance

Full compliance

Full compliance

Full compliance

Cleaning standards

Full compliance

Full compliance

Hand hygiene (rate) – quarter 2

75%

78.1%

Hand hygiene (rate) – quarter 3

77%

78.1%

Hand hygiene (rate) – quarter 4

80%

80.2%

Healthcare worker immunisation
– influenza

75%

81.7%

1

 e Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey (VHES) was formerly known as the
Th
Victorian Health Experience Measurement Instrument (VHEMI).

2

SAB is staphylococcus aureus bacteraemia.

Financial sustainability performance
Note: Figures are representative of Melbourne Health position at 30 June
2015 unless otherwise specified
KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

TARGET

2014/15
ACTUALS

Finance
Annual operating result ($m)

-1.475

-1.380

Creditors

< 60 days

57

Debtors

< 60 days

49

Percentage of WIES1 (public & private)
performance to target

100%

100.5%

1

3%

80%

Residential aged care accreditation

Full compliance

2014/15
ACTUALS

Percentage of ambulance transfers within 90%
40 minutes

Safety and quality
Health service accreditation

Asset management
Basic asset management plan

TARGET

Full compliance

Elective surgery
NEST – Percentage of Urgency Category 100%
1 elective patients treated within 30 days

100%

NEST – Percentage of Urgency Category 88%
2 elective surgery patients treated within
90 days

52.6%

NEST – Percentage of Urgency Category 97%
3 elective surgery patients treated within
365 days

72.1%

Number of patients on the elective
surgery waiting list1

3119

2,754

8
Number of Hospital Initiated
Postponements (HiPs) per 100 scheduled
admissions

9.4

Number of patients admitted from the
elective surgery waiting list – quarter 1

2,217

2,237

Number of patients admitted from the
elective surgery waiting list – quarter 2

2,087

2,031

Number of patients admitted from the
elective surgery waiting list – quarter 3

2,046

1,855

Number of patients admitted from the
elective surgery waiting list – quarter 4

2,157

1,975

Number of patients admitted from the
8,507
elective surgery waiting list – annual total

8,119

Critical care
Adult ICU minimum operating capacity
1

0

6

 e target shown is the number of patients on the elective surgery waiting list as at 30
Th
June 2015.

WIES is a Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation.
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Part C: Activity and Funding
FUNDING TYPE

2014/15 ACTIVITY
ACHIEVEMENTS

FUNDING TYPE

2014/15 ACTIVITY
ACHIEVEMENTS

Acute Admitted
WIES Public

58,288

Aged Care
Aged Care Assessment Service

$2,946

WIES Private

13,027

Residential Aged Care

25,256

WIES (Public & Private)

71,315

HACC

WIES DVA

580

WEIS TAC

3,917

WIES TOTAL

75,812

Acute non-admitted
Emergency Services

$31,111

Specialist Clinics

$51,443

Subacute & Nonacute Admitted
Rehab Public
Rehab Private

5,009
65

GEM Public

35,342

Subacute admitted other

$688

GEM Private

7,928
953

Palliative Care Public

4,696

Palliative Care Private

850

Palliative Care DVA

91

Transition Care- Beddays

10,293

Transition Care- Homeday

11,907

Subacute & Nonacute Other
Other specified funding
Subacute non-admitted
Victorian Artifical Limb Program
Health Independence Program
Health Independence Program- DVA
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$267

$1,930
$21,208
$204

82,571

Mental Health Ambulatory

170,106

Mental Health Residential

35,408

Mental Health Service System Capacity
Mental Health Sub Acute
Mental Health Other

12,414

Rehab DVA

GEM DVA

Mental Health and Drug Services
Mental Health Inpatient-Beddays

$93

Drug Services
Other specified funding
Primary health
Community Health/Primary Care Programs
Community Health Other
Other
Other specified funding

$4,341
$32,545
$1,049
$127
$1,314
1
$21,606

1

Attestation on Data Integrity
I, Gareth Goodier, certify that Melbourne Health has put in
place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that
reported data reasonably reflects actual performance. Melbourne
Health has critically reviewed these controls and processes during
the year.

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive
Melbourne
10 August 2015

Attestation for Compliance with the Ministerial
Standing Direction 4.5.5 – Risk Management Framework
and Processes
I, Gareth Goodier, certify that Melbourne Health has complied
with Ministerial Direction 4.5.5 –Risk Management Framework
and Processes except for the requirement to record the valuation of
self-insured retained losses.
Self-insured losses arising in respect to Melbourne Health’s own
assets are replaced on a needs basis, subject to relevant budget.
Self-insured losses arising in respect to third party property are
assessed on a case- by-case basis and at a value negotiated with
the third party, allowing for condition & age. Melbourne Health
is instituting a register of self-insured losses for third party
property.

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive
Melbourne
10 August 2015
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Disclosure Index
The Annual Report of Melbourne Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant
Victorian legislation.
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance
with statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation Requirement

Page
Reference

Ministerial Directions – Report of Operations
Charter & Purpose
FRD 22F Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

6–7, 72

FRD 22F

Purpose, functions, powers and duties

6

FRD 22F

Initiatives and key achievements

3

FRD 22F

Nature and range of services provided

Management & Structure
FRD 22F Organisational structure
Financial & Other Information
FRD 10
Disclosure index

8, 10

9

22

FRD 11A

Disclosure of ex-gratia payments

44, 74

FRD 21B

Responsible person and executive officer disclosures

72, 73

FRD 22F

13

FRD 22F

Application and operation of Protected Disclosure
Act 2012
Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act
2012
Application and operation of Freedom of Information
Act 1982
Compliance with building and maintenance
provisions of Building Act 1993
Details of consultancies over $10,000

FRD 22F

Details of consultancies under $10,000

FRD 22F

Employment and conduct principles

FRD 22F

Major changes or factors affecting performance

FRD 22F

Occupational health and safety

FRD 22F

Operational and budgetary objectives and
performance against objectives
Reporting of office-based environment impacts

FRD 22F
FRD 22F
FRD 22F

FRD 24C
FRD 22F

13

Page
Reference

Financial & Other Information cont.
SD 3.4.13 Attestation on Data Integrity

21

SD 4.5.5

21

Risk management framework and processes

Financial Statements
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD 4.2(a) Statement of Changes in Equity

29

SD 4.2(b)

Comprehensive Operating Statement

27

SD 4.2(b)

Balance Sheet

28

SD 4.2(b)

Cash Flow Statement

30

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD 4.2(a) Compliance with Australian accounting standards
and other authoritative pronouncements
SD 4.2(c) Accountable officer’s declaration

31–39
24

SD 4.2(c)

Compliance with Ministerial Directions

31

SD 4.2(d)

Rounding of amounts

39

13

Legislation
Freedom of Information Act 1982

13

14

Protected Disclosure Act 2001

13

Carers Recognition Act 2012

13

15

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

14

15

Building Act 1993

14

12, 13
2–5, 16
12
16, 17–20
14
16

FRD 22F

Significant changes in financial position during the
year
Statement on National Competition Policy

FRD 22F

Subsequent events

76

FRD 22F

Summary of the financial results for the year

16

FRD 22F

FRD 25B

Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement
on the application of employment and conduct
principles
Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures

FRD 29A

Workforce Data Disclosures

SD 4.2(g)

Specific information requirements

SD 4.2(j)

Sign-off requirements
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Legislation Requirement

14

12, 13

14
12
2–5
5

Financial Management Act 1994

5, 24, 31

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24
25
27
28
29
30
31

BOARD MEMBER’S, ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S AND
CHIEF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S DECLARATION
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
BALANCE SHEET
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Board Member’s, Accountable
Officer’s and Chief Finance &
Accounting Officer’s Declaration
We certify that the attached financial statements for Melbourne Health have
been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial
Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive
operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement
and notes to and forming part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial
transactions during the year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial position of
Melbourne Health at 30 June 2015.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any
particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

Mr Robert Doyle
Chairman

Dr Gareth Goodier
Chief Executive

Mr George Kapitelli
Executive Director
Finance & Logistics

Melbourne Health
10 August 2015

Melbourne Health
10 August 2015

Melbourne Health
10 August 2015
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Independent Audit Report
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Independent Audit Report
(continued)
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Melbourne Health Operating Statement
Comprehensive
Comprehensive Operating Statement

For
Financial
Year Year
EndedEnded
30 June 30
2015
Forthe
the
Financial
June 2015

Note

Revenue from Operating Activities
Revenue from Non-Operating Activities
Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory Sale
Employee Expenses
Non Salary Labour Costs
Supplies and Consumables
Other Expenses
Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

Parent Entity

Parent Entity

Consolidated

Consolidated

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

931,545
8,003
25,624
(669,808)
(14,429)
(152,255)
(104,436)
(25,624)

879,093
8,068
25,911
(638,176)
(12,361)
(144,963)
(90,431)
(25,911)

931,702
8,020
25,624
(669,959)
(14,429)
(152,255)
(104,609)
(25,624)

879,270
8,354
25,911
(638,486)
(12,362)
(144,963)
(91,514)
(25,911)

(1,380)

1,230

(1,530)

299

2
3

26,720
(392)

53,240
(42)

26,720
(392)

53,240
(42)

2
4
3b
3

(48,091)
(3,033)
(1,921)

10
(48,732)
(821)

(48,091)
(3,033)
(1,921)

10
(48,733)
(821)

(28,097)

4,885

(28,247)

3,953

2
2
2
3
3
3
3
3

Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items
Capital Purpose Income
Impairment of Financial Assets
Revaluation gain recognised on Disposal of Non-Financial
Assets
Depreciation and Amortisation
Specific Expenses
Expenditure for Capital Purpose
NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus

17

202

137,997

202

137,997

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net result
Changes to Financial Assets Available-for-sale Revaluation
Surplus

17

(68)

682

(68)

715

134

138,679

134

138,712

(27,963)

143,564

(28,113)

142,665

Total other comprehensive income
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MelbourneSheet
Health
Balance
Balance Sheet

As
3030
JuneJune
2015 2015
Asatat

Note Parent Entity
2015
$'000
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and Other Assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Receivables
Investments and Other Financial Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Intangible Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus
Financial Asset Available for Sale Revaluation Surplus
Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Contributed Capital
Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
TOTAL EQUITY
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Commitments

Consolidated Consolidated
2015
2014
$'000
$'000

5
6
8
9

56,974
55,207
7,528
23,421
143,130

57,142
55,798
8,129
23,800
144,869

57,215
55,212
7,527
23,424
143,378

57,365
55,801
8,129
23,805
145,100

6
7
10
11

9,249
6,334
647,499
2,231
665,313
808,443

16,703
6,612
623,037
2,611
648,963
793,832

9,249
5,471
647,503
2,231
664,454
807,832

16,703
5,932
623,042
2,611
648,288
793,388

12
13
14
16

73,939
389
171,997
1,960
248,285

95,690
163,303
1,860
260,853

73,225
389
172,035
1,960
247,609

94,972
163,341
1,860
260,173

13
14

1,451
24,236
25,687
273,972
534,471

1,745
22,610
24,355
285,208
508,624

1,451
24,241
25,692
273,301
534,531

1,745
22,616
24,361
284,534
508,854

17a
17a
17a
17b
17c

300,861
1,601
33,852
358,751
(160,594)
534,471

300,659
1,669
28,401
304,943
(127,048)
508,624

300,861
1,872
33,643
358,751
(160,596)
534,531

300,659
1,940
29,291
304,943
(127,979)
508,854

21
20

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Parent Entity
2014
$'000

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Balance at 30 June 2015

300,861

202
-

300,659

Balance at 30 June 2014

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to contributed capital
Transfer to accumulated surplus

137,997
-

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to accumulated surplus

Property, Plant &
Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
$'000

300,861

202
-

300,659

162,662
137,997
-

162,662

17c
17a
17b
17a,c
17c

17c
17a
17a,c

Note

Property, Plant &
Equipment
Revaluation
Surplus
$'000

Balance at 1 July 2013

Parent

Balance at 30 June 2015

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to contributed capital
Transfer to accumulated surplus
Other - VCCC

Balance at 30 June 2014

Balance at 1 July 2013
Net result for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to accumulated surplus

Consolidated

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015

Melbourne Health
Statement of Changes in Equity

1,872

(68)
-

1,940

1,225
715
-

33,643

4,352
-

29,291

56,646
(27,355)

$'000

358,751

53,808
-

304,943

304,943
-

$'000

$'000

1,601

(68)
-

1,669

682
-

987

33,852

5,451

28,401

(26,722)

55,123

$'000

358,751

53,808
-

304,943

-

304,943

$'000

Financial Asset
Restricted Specific Contributions by
Available for Sale
Purpose Surplus
Owners
Revaluation Surplus

$'000

Financial Asset
Restricted Specific Contributions by
Available for Sale
Purpose Surplus
Owners
Revaluation Surplus

(160,594)

(28,097)
(5,449)

(127,048)

4,885
25,957

(157,890)

$'000

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

(160,596)

(28,247)
(4,352)
(18)

(127,979)

(159,286)
3,953
27,354

$'000

Accumulated
Surpluses/
(Deficits)

534,471

(28,097)
134
53,808
2

508,624

4,885
138,679
(765)

365,825

$'000

Total

534,531

(28,247)
134
53,808
(18)

508,854

366,190
3,953
138,712
(1)

$'000

Total

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015
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Melbourne
Health
Cash
Flow
Statement
Cash Flow Statement

For
Financial
Year Year
EndedEnded
30 June 30
2015
Forthe
the
Financial
June 2015
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Grants from Government
Patient and Resident Fees Received
Private Practice Fees Received
Donations and Bequests Received
GST Received from/(paid to) ATO
Recoupment from private practice for use of hospital
facilities
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Other Receipts
Total Receipts
Employee Expenses Paid
Non Salary Labour Costs
Payments for Supplies & Consumables
Other Payments
Total Payments
Cash Generated from Operations
Capital Grants from Government
Capital Donations and Bequests Received
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

18

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for Non-Financial Assets
Purchase of Investments
Proceeds from sale of Non-Financial Assets
Proceeds from sale of Investments
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings
Contributed Capital from Government
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS HELD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR

5

Parent Entity
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

730,609
50,510
28,289
4,114
24,233

708,035
46,495
25,483
3,517
26,255

730,609
50,510
28,289
4,114
24,233

708,035
46,495
25,483
3,501
26,255

220
2,991
381
117,839
959,186
(667,541)
(6,002)
(154,086)
(139,785)
(967,414)
(8,228)

187
3,621
242
102,208
916,043
(638,357)
(5,869)
(146,754)
(123,446)
(914,426)
1,617

220
3,007
381
144,710
986,073
(667,693)
(6,002)
(177,371)
(143,400)
(994,466)
(8,393)

187
3,875
275
132,576
946,682
(638,667)
(5,869)
(170,038)
(130,619)
(945,193)
1,489

23,986
-

53,080
108

23,986
-

53,080
108

15,758

54,805

15,593

54,677

(27,511)
(183)
8,251
-

(52,869)
(182)
30
97

(27,512)
8,251
-

(52,869)
30
97

(19,443)

(52,924)

(19,261)

(52,742)

3,418

1,745

3,418

1,745

3,418

1,745

3,418

1,745

(267)

3,626

(250)

3,680

55,282

51,656

55,505

51,825

55,015

55,282

55,255

55,505

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Parent Entity
2014
$'000

Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies
These annual financial statements represent the
audited general purpose financial statements
for Melbourne Health for the period ending
30 June 2015. The purpose of the report is to
provide users with information about the Health
Services’ stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements are general purpose
financial statements which have been prepared
in accordance with the Financial Management
Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting
Standards (AASs) which include interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner
consistent with the requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements.
The financial statements also comply with
relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs)
issued by the Department of Treasury and
Finance and relevant Standing Directions (SDs)
authorised by the Minister for Finance.
Melbourne Health is a not-for-profit entity
and therefore applies the additional Australian
paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” entities
under the AASs.
The annual financial statements were authorised
for issue by the Board of Melbourne Health on
10 August 2015.

(b) Basis of accounting preparation
and measurement
Accounting policies are selected and applied
in a manner which ensures that the resulting
financial information satisfies the concepts of
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or
other events is reported.
The accounting policies set out below have been
applied in preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2015 and the comparative
information presented in these financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.
The going concern basis was used to prepare the
financial statements.
These financial statements are presented
in Australian dollars, the functional and
presentation currency of Melbourne Health.
The financial statements, except for cash flow
information, have been prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities,
equity, income or expenses when they satisfy
the definitions and recognition criteria for those
items, that is they are recognised in the reporting
period to which they relate, regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the historical cost convention,
except for:
1) Non-current physical assets which, subsequent
to acquisition, are measured at revalued
amount being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent impairment losses.
Revaluations are made and are re-assessed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amounts do not materially differ from their
fair values;
2) Derivative financial instruments, managed
investment schemes, certain debt securities and
investment properties after initial recognition,
which are measured at fair value with changes
reflected in the comprehensive operating
statement (fair value through profit and loss);
3) Available-for-sale investments which are
measured at fair value with movements reflected
in equity until the asset is derecognised (i.e.
other comprehensive income – items that may
be reclassified subsequent to net result); and
4) The fair value of assets other than land is
generally based on their depreciated replacement
value.
In the application of AASs management is
required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on professional judgments
derived from historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. Judgements
made by management in the application of AASs
that have significant effects on the financial
statements and estimates relate to:
1) The fair value of land, buildings, plant and
equipment (refer to Note 1 (l));
2) Actuarial assumptions for employee benefit
provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff,
patterns of leave claims, future salary movements
and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(m));
3) Superannuation expense (refer to Note 15);
4) Equities and management investment schemes
classified at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value
Measurement, Melbourne Health determines the
policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurements such as property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and financial
instruments, and for non-recurring fair value
measurements such as non-financial physical
assets held for sale, in accordance with the
requirements of AASB 13 and the relevant FRDs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
·L
 evel 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
·L
 evel 2 – Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
·L
 evel 3 – Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures,
Melbourne Health has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
In addition, Melbourne Health determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is
Melbourne Health’s independent valuation
agency.
Melbourne Health, in conjunction with VGV
monitors the changes in the fair value of each
asset and liability through relevant data sources
to determine whether revaluation is required.

(c) Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the
controlled activities of Melbourne Health.
Its principal address is:
c/o The Royal Melbourne Hospital
Victoria 3050.
A description of the nature of Melbourne
Health’s operations and its principal activities is
included in the report of operations, which does
not form part of these financial statements.

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2014/15 | 31

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Principles of Consolidation
In accordance with AASB 127 Consolidated
Financial Statements, the consolidated financial
statements of Melbourne Health incorporates
the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled
by Melbourne Health as at 30 June 2015 and
their income and expenses for that part of the
reporting period in which control existed. The
consolidated financial statements exclude bodies
of Melbourne Health that are not controlled
by Melbourne Health, and therefore are not
consolidated. Control exists when Melbourne
Health has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.
Where control of an entity is obtained during
the financial period, its results are included in
the comprehensive operating statement from
the date on which control commenced. Where
control ceases during a financial period, the
entity’s results are included for that part of the
period in which control existed. Where dissimilar
accounting policies are adopted by entities and
their effect is considered material, adjustments
are made to ensure consistent policies are adopted
in these financial statements.
Intersegment Transactions
Transactions between segments within
Melbourne Health have been eliminated
to reflect the extent of Melbourne Health’s
operations as a group.
Jointly controlled assets or operations
Interests in jointly controlled assets or operations
are not consolidated by Melbourne Health, but
are accounted for in accordance with the policy
outlined in Note 1(k) Financial Assets.
Melbourne Health holds 11.1% interest in jointly
controlled assets and operations of Victorian
Comprehensive Cancer Centre Limited.

(e) Scope and presentation of financial
statements
Fund Accounting
Melbourne Health operates on a fund accounting
basis and maintains three funds: Operating,
Specific Purpose and Capital Funds. Melbourne
Health’s Capital and Specific Purpose Funds
include unspent capital donations and receipts
from fund-raising activities conducted solely in
respect of these funds.

Comprehensive operating statement
The comprehensive operating statement includes
the subtotal entitled ‘net result before capital &
specific items’ to enhance the understanding of
the financial performance of Melbourne Health.
This subtotal reports the result excluding items
such as capital grants, assets received or provided
free of charge, depreciation, expenditure using
capital purpose income and items of an unusual
nature and amount such as specific income and
expenses. The exclusion of these items is made
to enhance matching of income and expenses so
as to facilitate the comparability and consistency
of results between years and Victorian Public
Health Services. The ‘net result before capital
& specific items’ is used by the management
of Melbourne Health, the Department of
Health and Human Services and the Victorian
Government to measure the ongoing operating
performance of Health Services.
Capital and specific items, which are excluded
from this sub-total, comprise:
1) Capital purpose income, which comprises
all tied grants, donations and bequests received
for the purpose of acquiring non-current assets,
such as capital works, plant and equipment
or intangible assets. It also includes donations
of plant and equipment (refer Note 1(g)).
Consequently the recognition of revenue as
capital purpose income is based on the intention
of the provider of the revenue at the time the
revenue is provided.
2) Specific income includes non-current asset
revaluation increments/decrements, as described
in Note 2b.
3) Impairment of financial and non-financial
assets, includes all impairment losses (and
reversal of previous impairment losses), which
have been recognised in accordance with
Note 1(i).
4) Depreciation and amortisation, as described
in Note 1(h).
5) Expenditure using capital purpose income
comprises expenditure which either falls below
the asset capitalisation threshold or doesn’t meet
asset recognition criteria and therefore does not
result in the recognition of an asset in the balance
sheet, where funding for that expenditure is from
capital purpose income.
Other economic flows are changes arising from
market remeasurements. They include:
· gains and losses from disposal of non-financial
assets
· revaluations and impairments of non-financial
physical and intangible assets
· fair value changes of financial instruments
Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are categorised either
as current or non-current (non-current being
those assets or liabilities expected to be
recovered/settled more than 12 months
after reporting period).
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Statement of changes in equity
The Statement of Changes in Equity presents
reconciliations of each non-owner and owner
equity opening balance at the beginning of the
reporting period to the closing balance at the end
of the reporting period. It also shows separately
changes due to amounts recognised in the
comprehensive result and amounts recognised in
other comprehensive income.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether
or not they arise from operating activities,
investing activities or financing activities. This
classification is consistent with requirements
under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.

(f) Change in accounting policies
Subsequent to the 2013-14 reporting period, the
following new and revised standards have been
adopted for the first time in the current period
with their financial impacts disclosed.
AASB 10 Consolidated financial statements
AASB 10 provides a new approach to determine
whether an entity has control over another entity,
and therefore must present consolidated financial
statements. The new approach requires the
satisfaction of all three criteria for control to exist
over an entity for financial reporting purposes:
(a) The investor has power over the investee;
(b) The investor has exposure, or rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and
(c) The investor has the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of
investor’s returns.
Based on the new criteria prescribed in AASB
10, Melbourne Health has reviewed the existing
arrangements to determine if there are any
additional entities that need to be consolidated
into the group.
There are no additional entities that need to be
added to Melbourne Health.
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
In accordance with AASB 11, there are two
types of joint arrangements, i.e. joint operations
and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where
the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement.
A joint operator accounts for its share of the
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the investors have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement; joint ventures
are accounted for under the equity method.
Proportionate consolidation of joint ventures is
no longer permitted.
Melbourne Health has reviewed its existing
contractual arrangements with other entities
to ensure they are aligned with the new
classifications under AASB 11.
Melbourne Health accounts for 1/9 share of the
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre (refer
Note 26).
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities prescribes the disclosure requirements
for an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements; and extends to the
entity’s association with unconsolidated
structured entities.
Melbourne Health has disclosed information
about its interests in associates and joint ventures,
including any significant judgement and
assumptions used in determining the type of
joint arrangement in which it has an interest.

(g) Income from transactions
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB
118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to Melbourne Health and the income can be
reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income
at reporting date is reported as income received
in advance.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where
applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties
and taxes.
Government Grants and other transfers of
income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions,
government grants and other transfers of
income (other than contributions by owners) are
recognised as income when Melbourne Health
gains control of the underlying assets irrespective
of whether conditions are imposed on Melbourne
Health’s use of the contributions.
Contributions are deferred as income in advance
when Melbourne Health has a present obligation
to repay them and the present obligation can be
reliably measured.
Indirect Contributions from the Department
of Health and Human Services
· Insurance is recognised as revenue following
advice from the Department of Health and
Human Services.
· Long Service Leave (LSL) – Revenue is
recognised upon finalisation of movements
in LSL liability in line with the arrangements
set out in the Finance and Corporate Services
Division Hospital Circular 05/2013.

Donations and Other Bequests
Donations and bequests are recognised as
revenue when received. If donations are for
a special purpose, they may be appropriated to
a reserve, such as the specific restricted purpose
reserve.
Dividend Revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time
proportionate basis that takes into account the
effective yield of the financial asset.
Sale of investments
The gain/loss on the sale of investments is
recognised when the investment is realised.
Fair value of assets and services received free
of charge or for nominal consideration
Resources provided or received free of charge or
for nominal consideration are recognised at their
fair value when the transferee obtains control
over them, irrespective of whether restrictions
or conditions are imposed over the use of the
contributions, unless received from another
Health Service or agency as a consequence of a
restructuring of administrative arrangements. In
the latter case, such transfer will be recognised
at carrying value. Contributions in the form of
services are only recognised when a fair value can
be reliably determined and the services would
have been purchased if not donated.
Other income
Other income includes non-property rental,
dividends, forgiveness of liabilities, and bad
debt reversals.

(h) Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred
and reported in the financial year to which
they relate.
Cost of Goods Sold
Costs of goods sold are recognised when the sale
of an item occurs by transferring the cost or value
of the item/s from inventories.
Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
· Wages and salaries;

Patient and Resident Fees
Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time
invoices are raised or accrued when a patient is
discharged or a service is performed.

· Annual leave;

Private Practice Fees
Private practice fees are recognised as revenue
at the time invoices are raised.

· Superannuation expenses which are reported
differently depending upon whether employees
are members of defined benefit or defined
contribution plans.

Revenue from commercial activities
Revenue from commercial activities such as
commercial laboratory medicine is recognised
at the time invoices are raised.

· Sick leave;
· Long service leave; and

Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e.
accumulation) superannuation plans, the
associated expense is simply the employer
contributions that are paid or payable in respect
of employees who are members of these plans
during the reporting period. Contributions to
defined contribution superannuation plans are
expensed when incurred.
Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amount charged to the comprehensive
operating statement in respect of defined
benefit superannuation plans represents the
contributions made by Melbourne Health to the
superannuation plans in respect of the services
of current Melbourne Health staff during the
reporting period. Superannuation contributions
are made to the plans based on the relevant rules
of each plan and are based upon actuarial advice.
Employees of Melbourne Health are entitled to
receive superannuation benefits and Melbourne
Health contributes to both the defined benefit
and defined contribution plans. The defined
benefit plan(s) provide benefits based on years of
service and final average salary.
The name and details of the major employee
superannuation funds and contributions made
by Melbourne Health are shown in Note 15.
Depreciation
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and
equipment and other non-financial physical
assets that have finite useful lives are depreciated
(i.e. excludes land, assets held for sale, and
investment properties). Depreciation begins when
the asset is available for use, which is when it is
in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in a manner intended by
management.
Intangible produced assets with finite lives are
depreciated as an expense from transactions
on a systematic basis over the asset’s useful
life. Depreciation is generally calculated on a
straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the
asset value, less any estimated residual value
over its estimated useful life. Estimates of
the remaining useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method for all assets are reviewed
at least annually, and adjustments made where
appropriate. This depreciation charge is not
funded by the Department of Health and
Human Services. Assets with a cost in excess of
$1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been
provided on depreciable assets so as to allocate
their cost or valuation over their estimated
useful lives.
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Finance costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred. Finance
costs include:

Share of net profits/(losses) of associates
and joint entities, excluding dividends.
Refer to Note 1(d) Basis of consolidation.

· interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and
long-term borrowings;

Other gains/(losses) from other
comprehensive income
Other gains/(losses) include:

· amortisation of discounts or premiums relating
to borrowings; and
· amortisation of ancillary costs incurred
in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Reclassification of financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss
Financial instrument assets that meet the
definition of loans and receivables may be
reclassified out of the fair value through profit
and loss category into the loans and receivables
category, where they would have met the
definition of loans and receivables had they
not been required to be classified as fair value
through profit and loss. In these cases, the
financial instrument assets may be reclassified out
of the fair value through profit and loss category,
if there is the intention and ability to hold them
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument
assets with fixed and determinable payments
that are not quoted on an active market. These
assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less
any impairment.
Loans and receivables category includes cash
and deposits (refer to Note 1(k)), term deposits
with maturity greater than three months, trade
receivables, loans and other receivables, but not
statutory receivables.
Held-to-maturity investments
If Melbourne Health has the positive intent
and ability to hold nominated investments to
maturity, then such financial assets may be
classified as held to maturity. Held to maturity
financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition held
to maturity financial assets are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.
Melbourne Health makes limited use of this
classification because any sale or reclassification
of more than an insignificant amount of held
to maturity investments not close to their
maturity, would result in the whole category
being reclassified as available for sale. Melbourne
Health would also be prevented from classifying
investment securities as held to maturity for the
current and the following two financial years.
The held to maturity category includes certain
term deposits which Melbourne Health intends
to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial instrument assets
are those designated as available-for-sale or not
classified in any other category of financial
instrument asset. Such assets are initially
recognised at fair value. Gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised directly
in equity until the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is included in net result for the period.
Fair value is determined in the manner described
in Note 19(e).
Reclassification of available-for-sale
financial assets
Available-for sale financial instrument assets
that meet the definition of loans and receivables
may be classified into the loans and receivables
category if there is the intention and ability
to hold them for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially
recognised on the date they are originated.
They are initially measured at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
instruments are measured at amortised cost with
any difference between the initial recognised
amount and the redemption value being
recognised in profit and loss over the period of
the interest-bearing liability, using the effective
interest rate method.
Financial instrument liabilities measured at
amortised cost include all of Melbourne Health’s
contractual payables, deposits held and advances
received and interest-bearing arrangements other
than those designated at fair value through profit
or loss.

(k) Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the
balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash
at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are held for the purpose
of meeting short term cash commitments rather
than for investment purposes, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Receivables
Receivables consist of:
· Statutory receivables, which includes
predominantly amounts owing from the
Victorian Government and GST input tax
credits recoverable; and
· Contractual receivables, which includes mainly
debtors in relation to goods and services and
accrued investment income.

Receivables that are contractual are classified
as financial instruments and categorised as
loans and receivables. Statutory receivables are
recognised and measured similarly to contractual
receivables (except for impairment), but are not
classified as financial instruments because they
do not arise from a contract.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, less any
accumulated impairment.
Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts
due and are due for settlement within 30 days
from the date of recognition. Collectability of
debts is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and debts
which are known to be uncollectible are written
off. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the debts
may not be collected and bad debts are written
off when identified.
Investments and Other Financial Assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised
on trade date where purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned
and are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.
Investments are classified in the following
categories:
· Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss;
· Loans and receivables; and
· Available-for-sale financial assets.
Melbourne Health classifies its other financial
assets between current and non-current assets
based on the purpose for which the assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its other financial assets at
initial recognition.
Melbourne Health assesses at each balance
sheet date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
All financial assets, except those measured at fair
value through profit or loss are subject to annual
review for impairment.
Investments in joint operations
In respect of any interest in joint operations,
Melbourne Health recognises in the financial
statements:
· the assets that it controls jointly;
· t he liabilities that it incurs;
· e xpenses that it incurs jointly; and
· t he share of income that it earns from selling
outputs of the joint operation.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:
· the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or
· Melbourne Health retains the right to receive
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; or
· Melbourne Health has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
Where Melbourne Health has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards or transferred control, the asset is
recognised to the extent of Melbourne Health’s
continuing involvement in the asset.
Impairment of Financial Assets
At the end of each reporting period Melbourne
Health assesses whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. All financial assets,
except those measured at fair value through
profit and loss, are subject to annual review
for impairment.
Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful
debts on a regular basis. Bad debts considered
as written off and allowances for doubtful
receivables are expensed.
Where the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument at balance date has reduced by
20 percent or more than its cost price or where
its fair value has been less than its cost price for a
period of 12 or more months, the financial asset
is treated as impaired.
In order to determine an appropriate fair value
as at 30 June 2015 for its portfolio of financial
assets, Melbourne Health obtained a valuation
based on the best available advice through a
reputable financial institution. This value was
compared against valuation methodologies
provided by the issuer as at 30 June 2014.
These methodologies were critiqued and
considered to be consistent with standard
market valuation techniques.
In assessing impairment of statutory (noncontractual) financial assets, which are not
financial instruments, professional judgement is
applied in assessing materiality using estimates,
averages and other computational methods in
accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments includes:
· realised and unrealised gains and losses from
revaluations of financial instruments that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss or
held-for-trading;
· impairment and reversal of impairment for
financial instruments at amortised cost; and
· disposals of financial assets and derecognition
of financial liabilities.
Revaluations of financial instruments at fair value
The revaluation gain/(loss) on financial
instruments at fair value excludes dividends or
interest earned on financial assets.

(l) Non-financial Assets
Inventories
Inventories include goods and other property
held either for sale, consumption or for
distribution at no or nominal cost in the ordinary
course of business operations. It includes land
held for sale and excludes depreciable assets.
Inventories held for distribution are measured
at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential.
All other inventories, including land held for
sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
The basis used in assessing loss of service
potential for inventories held for distribution
include current replacement cost and technical
or functional obsolescence. Technical
obsolescence occurs when an item still functions
for some or all of the tasks it was originally
acquired to do but no longer matches existing
technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs
when an item no longer functions the way it
did when it was first acquired.
Cost for inventory is measured on the basis
of weighted average cost.
Property, plant and equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured
initially at cost and subsequently revalued at
fair value less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no
or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the
date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part
of a merger/machinery of government are
transferred at their carrying amount.
More details about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of nonfinancial physical assets are discussed in Note 10
Property, plant and equipment.

Crown Land is measured at fair value with
regard to the property’s highest and best use
after due consideration is made for any legal or
constructive restrictions imposed on the asset,
public announcements or commitments made
in relation to the intended use of the asset.
Theoretical opportunities that may be available in
relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account
until it is virtually certain that any restrictions
will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise
disclosed, the current use of these non-financial
physical assets will be their highest and best uses.
Land and Buildings are recognised initially at
cost and subsequently measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Leasehold Improvements
The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised
as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of
the remaining term of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the improvements.
Plant, equipment and vehicles are recognised
initially at cost and subsequently measured at
fair value less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Depreciated historical cost is
generally a reasonable proxy for fair value because
of the short lives of the assets concerned.
Revaluations of non-financial physical assets
Non-current physical assets are measured at
fair value and are revalued in accordance with
FRD 103E Non-current physical assets. This
revaluation process normally occurs at least every
five years, based upon the asset’s Government
Purpose Classification, but may occur more
frequently if fair value assessments indicate
material changes in values. Independent valuers
are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations
and any interim revaluations are determined in
accordance with the requirements of the FRDs.
Revaluation increments or decrements arise from
differences between an asset’s carrying value and
fair value.
Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other
comprehensive income’ and are credited directly
in equity to the asset revaluation surplus, except
that, to the extent that an increment reverses a
revaluation decrement in respect of that same
class of asset previously recognised as an expense
in net result, the increment is recognised as
income in the net result.
Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other
comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit
balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus
in respect of the same class of property, plant
and equipment.
Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases
relating to individual assets within an asset
class are offset against one another within that
class but are not offset in respect of assets in
different classes.
Revaluation surplus is not transferred to
accumulated funds on derecognition of the
relevant asset.

36 | Melbourne Health Annual Report 2014/15

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
In accordance with FRD 103E, Melbourne
Health’s non-current physical assets were assessed
to determine whether revaluation of the noncurrent physical assets was required.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable nonmonetary assets without physical substance such
as patents, trademarks, and computer software
and development costs (where applicable).
Intangible assets are initially recognised at
cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition
are capitalised when it is expected that additional
future economic benefits will flow to Melbourne
Health.
Prepayments
Other non-financial assets include prepayments
which represent payments in advance of receipt
of goods or services or that part of expenditure
made in one accounting period covering a term
extending beyond that period.

It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or
destruction of an asset, the future economic
benefits arising from the use of the asset will be
replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary
has been made. The recoverable amount for most
assets is measured at the higher of depreciated
replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell.
Recoverable amount for assets held primarily
to generate net cash inflows is measured at the
higher of the present value of future cash flows
expected to be obtained from the asset and fair
value less costs to sell.

(m) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:
· contractual payables which consist
predominantly of accounts payable representing
liabilities for goods and services provided to
Melbourne Health prior to the end of the
financial year that are unpaid, and arise when
Melbourne Health becomes obliged to make
future payments in respect of the purchase of
those goods and services.

Disposal of Non-Financial Assets
Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial
assets is recognised in the comprehensive
operating statement. Refer to Note 1(i) –
‘comprehensive income’.

The normal credit terms for accounts payable are
usually Nett 30 days.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
lives (and intangible assets not yet available
for use) are tested annually for impairment
(as described below) and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Contractual payables are classified as financial
instruments and are initially recognised at fair
value, and then subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Statutory payables are recognised and
measured similarly to contractual payables, but
are not classified as financial instruments and not
included in the category of financial liabilities
at amortised cost, because they do not arise from
a contract.

All other non-financial assets are assessed
annually for indications of impairment,
except for:
· inventories;
· assets arising from construction contracts.
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets
concerned are tested as to whether their carrying
value exceeds their possible recoverable amount.
Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount, the difference is writtenoff as an expense except to the extent that the
write-down can be debited to an asset revaluation
surplus amount applicable to that same class
of asset.
If there is an indication that there has been a
change in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised, the carrying amount shall be
increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal
of the impairment loss occurs only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised in
prior years.

· statutory payables, such as goods and services
tax and fringe benefits tax payables.

Borrowings
All borrowings are initially recognised at fair
value of the consideration received, less directly
attributable transaction costs. The measurement
basis subsequent to initial recognition depends
on whether Melbourne Health has categorised
its borrowings as either, financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any
difference between the initially recognised
amount and the redemption value is recognised
in net result over the period of the borrowing
using the effective interest method.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Melbourne
Health has a present obligation, the future
sacrifice of economic benefits is probable,
and the amount of the provision can be
measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows, using
a discount rate that reflects the time value of
money and risks specific to the provision.
When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be received from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
recovery will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
Employee Benefits
This provision arises for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered to the reporting date.
Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave
and Accrued Days Off
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and
accumulating sick leave are all recognised in
the provision for employee benefits as ‘current
liabilities’, because the health service does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlements
of these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing
of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave are measured at:
· Undiscounted value – if the health service
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
· Present value – if the health service does not
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave (LSL) is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Current Liability – unconditional LSL
(representing 10 or more years of continuous
service) is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements as a current liability even where
Melbourne Health does not expect to settle
the liability within 12 months because it will
not have the unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement should an employee
take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability
are measured at:
·p
 resent value – component that Melbourne
Health does not expect to settle within 12
months; and
·u
 ndiscounted value – component that
Melbourne Health expects to settle within
12 months.

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2014/15 | 37

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Non-Current Liability – conditional LSL
(representing less than 10 years of continuous
service) is disclosed as a non-current liability.
There is an unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement until the employee
has completed the requisite years of service.
Conditional LSL is required to be measured at
present value.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits.
Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised
when a detailed plan for the termination has
been developed and a valid expectation has been
raised with those employees affected that the
terminations will be carried out. The liabilities
for termination benefits are recognised in other
creditors unless the amount or timing of the
payments is uncertain, in which case they are
recognised as a provision.
On-Costs
Employee benefit on-costs such as payroll tax,
workers compensation and superannuation
are recognised together with provisions for
employee benefits.
Superannuation liabilities
Melbourne Health does not recognise any
unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of
the superannuation plans because Melbourne
Health has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay future benefits relating to its employees;
its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised
as an expense in the estimated consolidated
comprehensive operating statement.

(n) Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as either
operating or finance leases based on the economic
substance of the agreement so as to reflect the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Leases of property, plant and equipment are
classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
Operating Leases
Operating lease payments, including any
contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense
in the comprehensive operating statement
on a straight line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefits
derived from the use of the leased asset. The
leased asset is not recognised in the balance sheet.
Lease Incentives
All incentives for the agreement of a new or
renewed operating lease are recognised as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for
the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the
incentive’s nature or form or the timing
of payments.
In the event that lease incentives are received
by the lessee to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefits of incentives are recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset
is diminished.
Leasehold Improvements
The cost of leasehold improvements are
capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the
remaining term of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the improvements, whichever is
the shorter.

(o) Equity
Contributed Capital
Consistent with Australian Accounting
Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners
Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities
and FRD 119A Contributions by Owners,
appropriations for additions to the net asset
base have been designated as contributed
capital. Other transfers that are in the nature
of contributions or distributions that have been
designated as contributed capital are also treated
as contributed capital.
Property, Plant & Equipment
Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record
increments and decrements on the revaluation of
non-current physical assets.
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Financial Asset Available-for-Sale
Revaluation Surplus
The available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises
on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets. Where a revalued financial asset is sold
that portion of the surplus which relates to
that financial asset is effectively realised, and
is recognised in the comprehensive operating
statement. Where a revalued financial asset
is impaired that portion of the surplus which
relates to that financial asset is recognised in the
comprehensive operating statement.
Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus
A specific restricted purpose surplus is established
where Melbourne Health has possession or title
to the funds but has no discretion to amend or
vary the restriction and/or condition underlying
the funds received.

(p) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include
operating and capital commitments arising from
contracts. These commitments are disclosed by
way of a note (refer to Note 20) at their nominal
value and are inclusive of the goods and services
tax (“GST”) payable. In addition, where it is
considered appropriate and provides additional
relevant information to users, the net present
values of significant individual projects are stated.
These future expenditures cease to be disclosed
as commitments once the related liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet.

(q) Contingent assets and contingent
liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
not recognised in the balance sheet, but are
disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, are
measured at nominal value. Contingent assets
and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive
of GST receivable or payable respectively.

(r) Goods and Services Tax
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net
of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation
authority. In this case it is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive
of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included with other
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The
GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities which are
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation
authority, are presented as an operating cash flow.
Commitments for expenditure and contingent
assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Events after the reporting period

(t) Foreign currency

Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from
past transactions or other past events. Where
the transactions result from an agreement
between Melbourne Health and other parties,
the transactions are only recognised when the
agreement is irrevocable at or before the end of
the reporting period. Adjustments are made to
amounts recognised in the financial statements
for events which occur after the reporting period
and before the date the financial statements are
authorised for issue, where those events provide
information about conditions which existed
in the reporting period. Note disclosure is
made about events between the end of the
reporting period and the date the financial
statements are authorised for issue where the
events relate to conditions which arose after
the end of the reporting period and which
may have a material impact on the results of
subsequent reporting periods.

All foreign currency transactions during the
financial year are brought to account using
the exchange rate in effect at the date of
the transaction.

(u) Rounding
All amounts shown in the financial statements
are expressed to the nearest $1,000 unless
otherwise stated.

As at 30 June 2015, the following standards and
interpretations had been issued by the AASB but
were not yet effective. They become effective for
the first financial statements for reporting periods
commencing after the stated operative dates as
detailed in the table below. Melbourne Health
has not and does not intend to adopt these
standards early.

Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and
sum of components are due to rounding.

(v) Australian Accounting Standards
issued that are not yet effective
Certain new Australian accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for the 30 June 2015
reporting period.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Summary

Standard/
Interpretation

Applicable for annual
Impact on financial
reporting periods
statements
beginning or ending on
1 January 2018
Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

AASB 9 Financial
instruments

The key changes include the simplified
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, a new
hedging accounting model and a
revised impairment loss model to
recognise impairment losses earlier, as
opposed to the current approach that
recognises impairment only when
incurred.

AASB 14 Regulatory
Deferral Accounts

AASB 14 permits first-time adopters of
Australian Accounting Standards who
conduct rate-regulated activities to
continue to account for amounts related
to rate regulation in accordance with
their previous GAAP.

1 January 2016

AASB 15 Revenue
from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires
an entity to recognise revenue when
the entity satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to a customer.

1 Jan 2017

AASB 1056
Superannuation
Entities

AASB 1056 replaces AAS 25 Financial
Reporting by Superannuation Plans.
The standard was developed in light of
changes in recent years, developments
in the superannuation industry and
Australia’s adoption of IFRS.

1 July 2016

AASB 2014 1
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards [Part E
Financial Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the
AASB's decision to defer the mandatory
application date of AASB 9 to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 as a consequence of
Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting, and to
amend reduced disclosure
requirements.

1 January 2018

Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

AASB 2014 4
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards –
Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and
Amortisation
[AASB 116 & AASB
138]

Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible
Assets to:
• establish the principle for the basis of
depreciation and amortisation as being
the expected pattern of consumption of
the future economic benefits of an
asset;
• prohibit the use of revenue based
methods to calculate the depreciation
or amortisation of an asset, tangible or
intangible, because revenue generally
reflects the pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from
operating the business, rather than the
consumption through the use of the
asset.

1 January 2016

Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

AASB 2014 9
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Equity
Method in Separate
Financial Statements
[AASB 1, 127 & 128]

Amends AASB 127 Separate Financial
Statements to allow entities to use the
equity method of accounting for
investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements.

1 January 2016

No impact on Financial
Statements.
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No impact on Financial
Statements.

Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

(Exposure Draft 263 –
potential deferral to 1 Jan
2018)

No impact on Financial
Statements.
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Standard/
Interpretation

Summary

AASB 2014 10
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Sale or
Contribution of Assets
between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture [AASB
10 & AASB 128]

AASB 2014-10 amends AASB 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and
AASB 128 Investments in Associates to
ensure consistent treatment in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate
or joint venture.

AASB 2015 6
Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards – Extending
Related Party
Disclosures to Not-forProfit Public Sector
Entities
[AASB 10, AASB 124 &
AASB 1049]

The Amendments extend the scope of
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to
not-for-profit public sector entities. A
guidance has been included to assist
the application of the Standard by notfor-profit public sector entities.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Applicable for annual
Impact on financial
reporting periods
statements
beginning or ending on
1 January 2016
No impact on Financial
Statements.

1 January 2016

Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

(w) Category Groups
Melbourne Health has used the following category groups for reporting purposes for the current and previous financial years.

Residential
includingadmitted
Mental patient services, where services are delivered in public
(w)
Category
Groups
Admitted
Patient
Services (Admitted Patients) comprises
all Aged
acute Care
and subacute

Health (RAC incl. Mental Health) referred
hospitals. Health has used the following
Melbourne
to in the past as psychogeriatric residential
category groups for reporting purposes for the
Mental Health Services (Mental Health) comprisesservices,
all specialised
mental
services providing a range of inpatient, community based residential,
comprises
thosehealth
Commonwealthcurrent and previous financial years.
rehabilitation and ambulatory services which treat and
support
people with
mental
illness
and their families and carers. These services aim to identify
licensed
residential
agedacare
services
in receipt
mental illness
early,
and seek
to reduce
its impact through
providing funding
timely acute
services and appropriate longer-term accommodation and
Admitted
Patient
Services
(Admitted
Patients)
of supplementary
fromcare
the department
support forallthose
with a mental
illness.
comprises
acuteliving
and subacute
admitted
under the mental health program. It excludes
patient services, where services are delivered in
all other residential services funded under the
Non Admitted Services comprises acute and subacute non admitted services, where services are delivered in public hospital clinics and provide
public hospitals.
mentalreduces
health program,
suchforashospital
mental health
models of integrated community care, which significantly
the demand
beds and supports the transition from hospital to home in a
funded community care units and secure
safe and
timely Services
manner. (Mental Health)
Mental
Health
extended care units.
comprises all specialised mental health services
Emergency
Department
Services
(EDS) comprises all emergency department services.
providing
a range
of inpatient,
community
Other Services not reported elsewhere –
based residential, rehabilitation and ambulatory
comprises
services
Aged Care comprises a range of in home, specialist(Other)
geriatric,
residential
care not
andseparately
community based programs and support services, such as Home and
services
which treat and support people with
above, with
including:
Publicand
Health
Community Care (HACC) that are targeted to older classified
people, people
a disability,
their carers.
a mental illness and their families and carers.
Services including laboratory testing, blood
These
servicesAged
aim toCare
identify
mentalMental
illness early,
Residential
including
Health (RAC
Mental
Health)
referred to
in the past as psychogeriatric residential services, comprises
borneincl.
viruses
/ sexually
transmitted
infections
and
seek
to reduce its impact through
providing
those
Commonwealth-licensed
residential
aged care
services
in receipt
of supplementary
clinical
services,
Kooris
liaison officers, funding from the department under the mental health
program.
excludes
all and
otherappropriate
residentiallongerservices funded
under the
health
program,
such as mental health funded community care units and
timely
acuteIt care
services
immunisation
andmental
screening
services,
drugs
secure
extended careand
units.
term
accommodation
support for those
services including drug withdrawal, counselling
living with a mental illness.
and the needle and syringe program, Disability
Other Services not reported elsewhere - (Other) services
comprises
services
notand
separately
classified
including
aids
equipment
and above, including: Public Health Services including
Non
Admitted Services comprises acute and
laboratory testing, blood borne viruses / sexually transmitted
infections
clinical
services,
Kooris
flexible
support
packages
to
people
with
a liaison officers, immunisation and screening services,
subacute
non admitted services, where services
drugs services including drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle and syringe program, Disability services including aids and equipment and flexible
disability, Community Care programs including
are
delivered
in public
hospitalwith
clinics
and
support
packages
to people
a disability,
Community Care programs including sexual assault support, early parenting services, parenting
sexual services.
assault support,
services,
provide
models
of skills
integrated
community
assessment
and
development,
andcare,
various support
Healthearly
and parenting
Community
Initiatives also falls in this category group.
parenting assessment and skills development, and
which significantly reduces the demand for
various support services. Health and Community
hospital beds and supports the transition from
Initiatives also falls in this category group.
hospital to home in a safe and timely manner.

Emergency Department Services (EDS)
comprises all emergency department services.
Aged Care comprises a range of in home,
specialist geriatric, residential care and
community based programs and support services,
such as Home and Community Care (HACC)
that are targeted to older people, people with a
disability, and their carers.
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Note
Analysis
of Revenue
by Source by Source
Note2: 2:
Analysis
of Revenue

Government Grant
Indirect contributions by Department of Health and Human
Services
Patient & Resident Fees

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

395,620

10,470

57,732

229,038

15,851

4,144

14,251

2,758

73

402

1,597

110

29

99

5,068

27,996

741

4,085

16,208

1,122

293

1,008

51,453

Commerical Activities

21,463

568

3,132

12,426

860

225

773

39,447

Other revenue from operating activities - S&W Recoveries
from external orgnisations

11,905

315

1,737

6,892

477

125

429

21,880

Other Revenue from Operating Activities

47,200

1,249

6,888

27,326

1,891

494

1,700

86,748

506,942

13,416

73,976

293,487

20,311

5,310

18,260

931,702

1,635

43

239

947

66

17

59

3,006

207

5

30

120

8

2

7

379

Other Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

2,523

67

368

1,459

101

26

91

4,635

Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

4,365

115

637

2,526

175

45

157

8,020

25,624

Total Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest
Dividends

727,106

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,624

Total revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,624

25,624

Capital Purpose Income (excluding Interest)

-

-

-

-

-

-

26,720

26,720

Total Capital Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

26,720

26,720

Specific Income (refer note 2b)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

511,307

13,531

74,613

296,013

20,486

5,355

70,761

992,066

Total Revenue

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2014

2014

$'000

$'000

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

Government Grant
Indirect contributions by Department of Health and Human
Services
Patient & Resident Fees

371,965
1,393

37

183

852

60

17

60

2,602

24,749

657

3,260

15,144

1,073

305

1,054

46,242

Commerical Activities
Other revenue from operating activities - S&W Recoveries
from external orgnisations

19,748

524

2,601

12,084

856

244

841

36,898

9,950

264

1,311

6,089

431

123

424

18,592

Other Revenue from Operating Activities

42,781

1,135

5,635

26,178

1,854

528

1,823

79,934

470,586

12,486

61,988

287,960

20,398

5,804

20,048

879,270

2,074

55

273

1,269

90

26

88

3,875

147

4

19

90

6

2

6

274

Other Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

2,250

60

296

1,377

98

28

96

4,205

Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities

4,471

119

588

2,736

194

56

190

8,354

25,911

Total Revenue from Operating Activities
Interest
Dividends

9,869

48,998

227,613

16,124

4,587

15,846

695,002

Revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,911

Total revenue from Inter Hospital Inventory sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,911

25,911

Capital Purpose Income (excluding Interest)

-

-

-

-

-

-

53,240

53,240

Total Capital Purpose Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

53,240

53,240

Specific Income (refer note 2b)

-

-

-

-

-

-

10

10

475,057

12,605

62,576

290,696

20,592

5,860

99,399

966,785

Total Revenue

Indirect contributions by Department of Health (1 July 2014 - 31 Dec 2014) / Department of Health and Human Services (1 Jan 2015 - 30 June 2015).
Department of Health / Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of Melbourne Health (Insurance and Long Service Leave). These amounts have been brought to
account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.
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Note 2a: Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-financial assets

Note
on disposal
of non-financial
assets assets
Note2a:
2a:Net
Netgain/(loss)
gain/(loss)
on disposal
of non-financial

Proceeds from Disposals of Non-Current Assets
Medical Equipment
Motor
Vehicles
Proceeds
from Disposals of Non-Current Assets
BuildingsEquipment
Medical
Motor
Land Vehicles
Total
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Buildings
Less:
Land Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Plant
Equipment
Total &
Proceeds
from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Medical
Equipment
Less: Written
Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Motor
Plant &Vehicles
Equipment
Buildings
Medical Equipment
Land
Motor Vehicles
Total
Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Buildings
Land
Net gains/(losses) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold
Net gains/(losses) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Consolidated
2015
$'000
Consolidated

Consolidated
2014
$'000
Consolidated

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

2
184
3,226
2
184
4,839
8,251
3,226
4,839
118
8,251
305
142
118
2,145
305
3,223
142
5,933
2,145

8
22
822307
30
217
21
7
21721245-

3,223
2,318
5,933

(215)
245

2,318

(215)

Consolidated
2015
$'000
Consolidated

Consolidated
2014
$'000
Consolidated

Note 2b: Specific Income

Note 2b Specific Income
Note 2b Specific Income

Specific Income
Revaluation gain recognised on disposal of Non-Financial Asset
TOTAL
Specific Income
Revaluation gain recognised on disposal of Non-Financial Asset
TOTAL

2015
$'000

2014
$'000
-

10
10

-

10
10
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Note
3: 3:
Analysis
of Expenses
by Source
Note
Analysis
of Expenses
by Source

Employee Expenses

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

364,525

9,647

53,195

211,037

14,605

3,819

13,131

Non Salary Labour Costs

7,851

208

1,146

4,545

315

82

282

14,429

Supplies & Consumables

82,842

2,192

12,089

47,960

3,319

868

2,985

152,255

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase

669,959

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,624

25,624

56,919

1,506

8,306

32,952

2,280

596

2,050

104,609

512,137

13,553

74,736

296,494

20,519

5,365

44,072

966,876

Expenditure for Capital Purposes

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,921

1,921

Impairment of Financial Assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

392

392

Depreciation & Amortisation (refer note 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,091

48,091

Specific Expenses (refer note 3b)

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,033

3,033

Total other expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

53,437

53,437

512,137

13,553

74,736

296,494

20,519

5,365

97,509

1,020,313

Other Expenses
Total Expenditure from Operating Activities

Total Expenses

Employee Expenses

Admitted
Patients

NonAdmitted

2014

2014

$'000

$'000

EDs

Mental
Health

RAC incl.
Mental
Health

Aged Care

Other

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total

328,135

8,706

43,224

200,792

14,224

4,046

39,359

Non Salary Labour Costs

5,675

151

748

3,474

246

70

1,998

12,362

Supplies & Consumables

76,399

2,027

10,064

46,750

3,312

942

5,469

144,963

Expenses from Inter Hospital Inventory Purchase
Other Expenses
Total Expenditure from Operating Activities

638,486

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,911

25,911

37,008

982

4,875

22,646

1,604

456

23,943

91,514

447,217

11,866

58,911

273,662

19,386

5,514

96,680

913,236

821

Expenditure for Capital Purposes

-

-

-

-

-

-

821

Impairment of Financial Assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

42

42

Depreciation & Amortisation (refer note 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,733

48,733

Total other expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

49,596

49,596

447,217

11,866

58,911

273,662

19,386

5,514

146,276

962,832

Total Expenses
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Note 3a: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted
Note 3a: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted
Specific
Purpose
Funds of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted
Note 3a:
Analysis

Specific Purpose Funds
Specific Purpose Funds

Commercial Activities
Commercial
Activities
Private
Practice
and Other Patient Activities
Private Practice
and Other Patient Activities
Laboratory
Medicine
Laboratory Imaging
Medicine
Diagnostic
Diagnostic Imaging
Catering
Catering
Cafeteria
Cafeteria
Car
Park
Car Park
Breastscreen
Service
Breastscreen
Mental
HealthService
Services
Mental Health
Services
Medical
Special
Purpose Funds
Medical
Purpose Funds
External Special
Supply Agreements
External Supply Agreements
Other
Other
Other Activities
Other
Activities
Fundraising
and Community Support
Fundraising
and
Community Support
Research
and
Scholarship
Research
TOTAL and Scholarship
TOTAL

Expense
Expense
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
497
377
497
377
62
44
62
44
553
546
553
546
643
488
643
488
941
907
941
907
1,660
1,900
1,660
1,900
3,042
3,253
3,042
3,253
4,709
3,884
4,709
3,884
16,529
14,135
16,529
14,135
25,624
25,911
25,624
25,911
445
1,964
445
1,964
12,722
12,722
11,306
11,306
78,733
78,733

12,214
12,214
12,004
12,004
77,627
77,627

Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2015
$'000
$'000

Consolidated
Consolidated
2014
2014
$'000
$'000

Revenue
Revenue
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
553
355
553
355
50
35
50
35
2,212
2,357
2,212
2,357
373
330
373
330
2,390
2,287
2,390
2,287
6,300
6,190
6,300
6,190
3,883
3,558
3,883
3,558
4,796
4,313
4,796
4,313
17,067
16,791
17,067
16,791
25,624
25,911
25,624
25,911
4,483
4,521
4,483
4,521
21,174
21,174
12,317
12,317
101,222
101,222

21,239
21,239
12,522
12,522
100,409
100,409

Note3b:3b:
Specific
Expenses
Note
Specific
Expenses
Note 3b: Specific Expenses

Specific Expenses
Specific Expenses
Litigation
Settlements
Litigation
Settlements
Other
Other
Closure of South Stone Lodge Residential Aged
Closure
of South Stone Lodge Residential Aged
Care Facility
CareSpecific
Facility Expenses
Total
Total Specific Expenses

2,231
2,231

-

802
802
3,033
3,033

-

Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2015
$'000
$'000
33,069
33,069
1,286
1,286
8,605
8,605
2,696
2,696
250
250
382
382
46,288
46,288

Consolidated
Consolidated
2014
2014
$'000
$'000
34,262
34,262
1,473
1,473
7,971
7,971
2,325
2,325
217
217
393
393
46,641
46,641

407
407
1,396
1,396
1,803
1,803
48,091
48,091

311
311
1,781
1,781
2,092
2,092
48,733
48,733

Note 4: Depreciation and amortisation

Note 4: Depreciation and amortisation
Note 4: Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation
Depreciation
Buildings
Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Medical
Equipment
Medical Equipment
Computer
Equipment
Computer&Equipment
Furniture
Fittings
Furniture
& Fittings
Motor
Vehicles
Motor
Vehicles
Total Depreciation
Total Depreciation
Amortisation
Amortisation
Leased
Assets
Leased Assets
Intangible
Assets
Intangible
Assets
Total Amortisation
Total Amortisation
Total Depreciation & Amortisation
Total Depreciation & Amortisation
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Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents

Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in
banks, and short-term deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are
Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash assets includes cash on hand and in
banks, and short-term deposits which are readily convertible to cash on hand, and are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Other
- Patient Trust Monies
Cash
Hand
Total on
Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank
Other
Represented
by:Monies
- Patient Trust
Cash for
Health
Operations (as per
Total
Cash
andService
Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow Statement)
Represented by:
Cash for Monies Held in Trust
Cash for Health Service Operations (as per
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow Statement)

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

Consolidated
32
2015
55,223
$'000

Consolidated
31
2014
55,474
$'000

1,960
32
57,215
55,223

1,860
31
57,365
55,474

1,960
57,215
55,255

1,860
57,365
55,505

1,960
57,215
55,255

1,860
57,365
55,505

Melbourne
HealthHeld
complies
with the Standing Direction of 1,960
the Minister for Finance
Cash
for Monies
in Trust
1,860 4.5.6
Treasury
Risk
Management
by investing cash on hand with
an Authorised57,365
Deposit-taking
57,215
Total
Cash
and
Cash Equivalents
Institution (ADI) and short-term deposits with a State owned entity (Treasury Corporation
Victoria).
Melbourne Health complies with the Standing Direction of the Minister for Finance 4.5.6
Treasury Risk Management by investing cash on hand with an Authorised Deposit-taking
Institution (ADI) and short-term deposits with a State owned entity (Treasury Corporation
Victoria).

Note 6: Receivables

Note 6: Receivables
Note 6: Receivables

CURRENT
Contractual
Inter Hospital Debtors
Trade Debtors
CURRENT
Patient Fees
Contractual
Accrued Investment Income
Inter Hospital Debtors
Accrued Revenue - Other
Trade Debtors
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Patient Fees
Trade Debtors
Accrued Investment Income
Patient Fees
Accrued Revenue - Other
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Statutory
Trade Debtors
GST Receivable
Patient Fees
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES
Statutory
GST Receivable
NON-CURRENT
Statutory
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES
Long Service Leave - Department of Health
NON-CURRENT
/ Department of Health and Human Services
Statutory
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES
TOTAL
RECEIVABLES
Long Service
Leave - Department of Health

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

Consolidated Consolidated
2015
2014
9,358
10,256
$'000
$'000
14,979
14,742
10,759
10,750
317
9,358
10,256
17,742
16,114
14,979
14,742
10,759
10,750
(327)
(276)
317
(1,080)
(1,138)
17,742
16,114
51,431
50,765
(327)
3,781
(1,080)
3,781
51,431
55,212

(276)
5,036
(1,138)
5,036
50,765
55,801

3,781
3,781
55,212

5,036
5,036
55,801

9,249
9,249
64,461

16,703
16,703
72,504

/ Department of Health and Human Services
9,249
16,703
TOTAL
NON-CURRENT
RECEIVABLES
9,249
16,703
(a)
Movement
in the Allowance
for doubtful debts
64,461 Consolidated
72,504
TOTAL RECEIVABLES
Consolidated
2015
2014
$'000
(a) Movement in the Allowance for doubtful debts$'000
Balance at beginning of year
1,414
1,984
Consolidated Consolidated
Amounts written off during the year
(1,294)
(2,667)
2015
2014
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised
$'000
$'000
in net result
1,287
2,097
Balance at beginning of year
1,414
1,984
Balance at end of year
1,407
1,414
Amounts written off during the year
(1,294)
(2,667)
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised
in net result
1,287
2,097
(b)
Ageing
of receivables
Balance
at analysis
end of year
1,407
1,414
Please refer to note 19(c) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
(b) Ageing analysis of receivables
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from
Please refer to note 19(c) for the ageing analysis of contractual receivables
contractual receivables
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from
contractual receivables
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Note
7: Investments
and other financial
assets
Note
Note 7:
7: Investments
Investments and
and other
other financial
financial assets
assets
Specific
Specific Purpose
Purpose
Fund
Fund
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Operating
Operating Fund
Fund
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

NON-CURRENT
NON-CURRENT
Available for
for sale
sale
Available
Other
Other
Shares
Shares
Total
Total Non-Current
Non-Current
TOTAL
TOTAL INVESTMENTS
INVESTMENTS AND
AND OTHER
OTHER FINANCIAL
FINANCIAL ASSETS
ASSETS

32
32
32
32
32
32

29
29
29
29
29
29

5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439

5,903
5,903
5,903
5,903
5,903
5,903

5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471

5,932
5,932
5,932
5,932
5,932
5,932

Represented
Represented by:
by:
Health Service
Service Investments
Investments
Health
TOTAL
TOTAL INVESTMENTS
INVESTMENTS AND
AND OTHER
OTHER FINANCIAL
FINANCIAL ASSETS
ASSETS

32
32
32
32

29
29
29
29

5,439
5,439
5,439
5,439

5,903
5,903
5,903
5,903

5,471
5,471
5,471
5,471

5,932
5,932
5,932
5,932

(a)
(a) Ageing
Ageing analysis
analysis of
of investments
investments and
and other
other financial
financial assets
assets
Please refer
refer to
to note
note 19(c)
19(c) for
for the
the ageing
ageing analysis
analysis of
of investments
investments and
and other
other financial
financial assets
assets
Please
(b)
(b) Nature
Nature and
and extent
extent of
of risk
risk arising
arising from
from investments
investments and
and other
other financial
financial assets
assets
Please
Please refer
refer to
to note
note 19(e)
19(e) for
for the
the nature
nature and
and extent
extent of
of credit
credit risk
risk arising
arising from
from investments
investments and
and other
other financial
financial assets
assets
Melbourne Health
Health applied
applied for
for its
its share
share investments
investments to
to be
be exempt
exempt from
from compliance
compliance with
with the
the Standing
Standing Direction
Direction of
of the
the Minister
Minister for
for Finance
Finance 4.5.6
4.5.6
Melbourne
Treasury
Treasury Risk
Risk Management.
Management. As
As the
the unfavourable
unfavourable response
response was
was received
received in
in June
June 2015,
2015, Melbourne
Melbourne Health
Health was
was not
not able
able to
to achieve
achieve full
full
compliance
compliance by
by 30
30 June
June 2015.
2015.

Note 8: Inventories
Note 8:
8: Inventories
Inventories
Note

Pharmaceuticals*
Pharmaceuticals*
At cost
cost
At
Supply
Supply Store*
Store*
At
At cost
cost
Aids and
and Appliance*
Appliance*
Aids
At
At cost
cost
Medical
Medical and
and Surgical
Surgical Lines*
Lines*
At cost
cost
At
Pathology*
Pathology*
At
At cost
cost
TOTAL INVENTORIES
INVENTORIES
TOTAL

Consolidated
Consolidated
Consolidated Consolidated
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
2,554
2,554

3,375
3,375

1,655
1,655

1,419
1,419

80
80

84
84

2,451
2,451

2,514
2,514

787
787
7,527
7,527

737
737
8,129
8,129

** All
All categories
categories are
are valued
valued at
at the
the lower
lower of
of Cost
Cost and/or
and/or Net
Net Realisable
Realisable Value.
Value.
* All
categories
are
valued
at
the
lower
of
Cost
and/or
Net
Realisable
Value.

Note
9: Prepayments
and Other Assets
Note
Note 9:
9: Prepayments
Prepayments and
and Other
Other Assets
Assets

CURRENT
CURRENT
Prepayments
Prepayments
TOTAL
TOTAL CURRENT
CURRENT OTHER
OTHER ASSETS
ASSETS

Consolidated
Consolidated Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
23,424
23,805
23,424
23,805
23,424
23,805
23,424
23,805
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Note
plantplant
& equipment
Note10:
10:Property,
Property,
& equipment
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

79,457
52,979
132,436

79,457
56,202
135,659

92,154

37,759

382,698
32,848
4,469
1,877
444,596

384,199
4,415
1,469
424,904

39,015
18,664
20,351

30,035
17,641
12,394

103,251
59,233
44,018

97,869
54,059
43,810

25,782
21,602
4,180

23,876
19,713
4,163

Furniture & Fittings
Furniture & Fittings at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Furniture & Fittings

2,456
1,544
912

2,392
1,414
978

Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicle Assets at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Motor Vehicles

1,090
80
1,010

1,568
434
1,134

647,503

623,042

Land
Crown Land at Fair Value
Freehold Land at Fair Value
Total Land
Buildings
Buildings Under Construction at cost
Buildings at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Leasehold Improvements at cost
Less Acc'd Amortisation
Total Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment
Medical Equipment
Medical Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Medical Equipment
Computer Equipment
Computer Equipment at Fair Value
Less Acc'd Depreciation
Total Computer Equipment

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
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132,436

Balance at 30 June 2015

92,154

54,997
(602)
-

Buildings
WIP
$'000
7,329
31,165
(735)
37,759

2,592

53
(407)

Buildings
Imps L/Hold
$'000
2,216
962
79
(311)
2,946

20,351

8,830
(35)
448
(1,286)

Plant &
Equipment
$'000
7,575
5,131
(7)
1,168
(1,473)
12,394

44,018

9,065
(305)
53
(8,605)

Medical
Equipment
$'000
41,271
10,727
(217)
(7,971)
43,810

4,180

2,696
(13)
30
(2,696)

Computer
Equipment
$'000
3,766
2,690
32
(2,325)
4,163

912

252
(70)
2
(250)

Furniture &
Fittings
$'000
923
272
(217)
978

1,010

198
(142)
202
(382)

Motor
Vehicles
$'000
1,491
67
(21)
(10)
(393)
1,134

647,503

76,951
(5,933)
202
(64)
(46,695)

$'000
480,136
52,106
(245)
137,997
(46,952)
623,042

Total

Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of Melbourne Health's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation, which conforms to Australian
Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The valuation was based on independent
assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

349,850

860
(2,145)
5
(33,069)

(3,223)
-

Balance at 1 July 2014
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)
Net Transfers between Classes
Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4)

Balance at 1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)
Net Transfers between Classes
Depreciation and Amortisation (note 4)

$'000
259,529
1,092
158,384
(544)
(34,262)
384,199

Buildings

$'000
156,036
(20,377)
135,659

Land

(b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset for the consolidated entity at the beginning and end of the previous and current financial year is set out below.

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
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Note 10:
10: Property,
Property,plant
plant&&equipment
equipment(continued)
(continued)
Note
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Carrying
amount as at
30 June 2015

Fair value measurement at end of reporting
period using:
Level 1 (1)

Level 2 (1)

Level 3 (1)

Land at fair value
Non-specialised land
Specialised land
- Crown land
Total of land at fair value

52,979

-

-

52,979

79,457
132,436

-

-

79,457
132,436

Buildings at fair value
Specialised buildings
Total of building at fair value

349,850
349,850

-

-

349,850
349,850

7,579
7,579

-

-

7,579
7,579

44,018
44,018

-

-

44,018
44,018

4,180
4,180

-

-

4,180
4,180

912
912

-

-

912
912

1,010
1,010

-

1,010
1,010

-

539,985

-

1,010

538,975

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Total of plant and equipment at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Total medical equipment at fair value
Computer equipment at fair value
Computer equipment at fair value
Total computer equipment at fair value
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Total furniture & fittings at fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Total motor vehicles at fair value

(i)

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

Carrying
amount as at
30 June 2014

Fair value measurement at end of reporting
period using:
Level 1 (1)

Level 2 (1)

Level 3 (1)

Land at fair value
Non-specialised land
Specialised land
- Crown land
Total of land at fair value

56,202

-

-

56,202

79,457
135,659

-

-

79,457
135,659

Buildings at fair value
Specialised buildings
Total of building at fair value

384,199
384,199

-

-

384,199
384,199

7,332
7,332

-

-

7,332
7,332

43,810
43,810

-

-

43,810
43,810

4,163
4,163

-

-

4,163
4,163

978
978

-

-

978
978

1,134
1,134

-

1,134
1,134

-

577,275

-

1,134

576,141

Plant and equipment at fair value
Plant and equipment at fair value
Total of plant and equipment at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Medical equipment at fair value
Total medical equipment at fair value
Computer equipment at fair value
Computer equipment at fair value
Total computer equipment at fair value
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Furniture & Fittings at fair value
Total furniture & fittings at fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Motor vehicles at fair value
Total motor vehicles at fair value

(i)

Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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Note10:
10:Property,
Property,
plant
& equipment
(continued)
Note
plant
& equipment
(continued)
(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

Balance at 1 July 2013
Purchases (sales)
Transfer between classes (within Level 3)
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
- Disposals
Subtotal
Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation
Subtotal
Balance at 1 July 2014 (i)
Purchases (sales)
Transfer between classes (within Level 3)
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation
- Disposals
Subtotal
Balance at 30 June 2015 (i)

Land

Buildings

$'000

$'000

Plant &
Equipment
$'000

Medical
Equipment
$'000

Computer
Equipment
$'000

Furniture &
Fittings
$'000

156,036
-

259,529
1,092
(544)

5,548
2,096
1,168

41,271
10,727
-

3,766
2,690
32

923
272
-

-

(34,262)
(34,262)

(1,473)
(7)
(1,480)

(7,971)
(217)
(8,188)

(2,325)
(2,325)

(217)
(217)

(20,377)
(20,377)
135,659
-

158,384
158,384
384,199
860
5

7,332
957
611

43,810
9,065
53

4,163
2,696
30

978
252
2

(3,223)
(3,223)

(33,069)
(2,145)
(35,214)

(1,286)
(35)
(1,321)

(8,605)
(305)
(8,910)

(2,696)
(13)
(2,709)

(250)
(70)
(320)

132,436

349,850

7,579

44,018

4,180

912

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
(i) Excludes assets under construction and leashold assets.
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Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations
2015

Valuation
technique

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Range (weighted
average)

Sensitivity of fair value measurement
to changes in significant
unobservable inputs

Specialised land
Market approach

Community
20 - 50% (35%)
Service Obligation
(CSO) adjustment

A significant increase or decrease in
the CSO adjustment would result in a
significantly lower (higher) fair value.

Depreciated
replacement cost

Direct cost per
square metre

$600 - $8,500/m2 A significant increase or decrease in
direct cost per square meter adjustment
($4,600)
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Useful life of
specialised
buildings

25 - 60 years (43 A significant increase or decrease in
years)
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly lower or
higher fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 $1,774,378
($887,689)

Specialised buildings

Plant and equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

A significant increase or decrease in
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Useful life of PPE 3 - 10 years (7
years)

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 $2,526,639
($1,263,820)

A significant increase or decrease in
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Useful life of
medical
equipment

5 - 10 years (8
years)

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 $790,651
($395,826)

A significant increase or decrease in
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Useful life of
computer
equipment

3 years

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 - $59,623 A significant increase or decrease in
($30,312)
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Medical equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Computer equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Furnitures & fittings at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

10 years
Useful life of
furnitures & fittings
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A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.
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Note 10: Property, plant & equipment (continued)
(e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations (continued)
2014
Valuation
technique

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Range (weighted
average)

Sensitivity of fair value measurement
to changes in significant
unobservable inputs

Specialised land
Market approach

Community
20 - 50% (35%)
Service Obligation
(CSO) adjustment

A significant increase or decrease in
the CSO adjustment would result in a
significantly lower (higher) fair value.

Depreciated
replacement cost

Direct cost per
square metre

$600 - $8,500/m2 A significant increase or decrease in
direct cost per square meter adjustment
($4,600)
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Useful life of
specialised
buildings

25 - 60 years (43 A significant increase or decrease in
years)
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly lower or
higher fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 $1,774,378
($887,689)

Specialised buildings

Plant and equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

A significant increase or decrease in
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Useful life of PPE 3 - 10 years (7
years)

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 $2,526,639
($1,263,820)

A significant increase or decrease in
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Useful life of
medical
equipment

5 - 10 years (8
years)

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 $790,651
($395,826)

A significant increase or decrease in
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Useful life of
computer
equipment

3 years

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.

Cost per unit

$1,000 - $59,623 A significant increase or decrease in
($30,312)
cost per unit would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value.

Medical equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Computer equipment at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

Furnitures & fittings at fair value
Depreciated
replacement cost

10 years
Useful life of
furnitures & fittings

A significant increase or decrease in
the estimated useful life of the asset
would result in a significantly higher or
lower fair value.
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Note 11: Intangible assets

Note 11: Intangible assets

Capitalised
Capitalised Costs
Costs
Less Acc'd
Acc'd Amortisation
Amortisation
Less
Post Office
Office License
License
Post
Software Costs
Costs Capitalised
Capitalised
Software
Less
Less Acc'd
Acc'd Amortisation
Amortisation
Total
Total Intangible
Intangible Assets
Assets

Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2015
$'000
$'000

Consolidated
Consolidated
2014
2014
$'000
$'000

15,551
15,551
13,847
13,847
1,704
1,704
70
70
70
70
13,931
13,931
13,474
13,474
457
457

14,797
14,797
12,944
12,944
1,853
1,853
70
70
70
70
13,674
13,674
12,986
12,986
688
688

2,231
2,231

2,611
2,611

Reconciliation of
of the
the carrying
carrying amounts
amounts of
of intangible
intangible assets
assets at
at the
the beginning
beginning and
and end
end of
of the
the previous
previous and
and current
current financial
financial year:
year:
Reconciliation

Capitalised
Capitalised
Costs
Costs
$'000
$'000
Balance
Balance at
at 1
1 July
July 2013
2013
Additions
Additions
Amortisation
Amortisation (note
(note 4)
4) (i)
(i)
Balance at
at 1
1 July
July 2014
2014
Balance
Additions
Additions
Amortisation (note
(note 4)
4)
Amortisation
Balance at
at 30
30 June
June 2015
2015
Balance

Software
Software
Costs
Costs
Capitalised
Capitalised
$'000
$'000

2,399
2,399
620
620
(1,166)
(1,166)
1,853
1,853
754
754
(903)
(903)
1,704
1,704

Post Office
Office
Post
License
License
$'000
$'000

1,151
1,151
152
152
(615)
(615)
688
688
262
262
(493)
(493)
457
457

70
70
--70
70
--70
70

Total
Total
$'000
$'000
3,620
3,620
772
772
(1,781)
(1,781)
2,611
2,611
1,016
1,016
(1,396)
(1,396)
2,231
2,231

(i) The
The consumption
consumption of
of separately
separately acquired
acquired intangible
intangible assets
assets is
is included
included in
in the
the 'amortisation'
'amortisation' line
line item,
item, where
where the
the consumption
consumption of
of the
the internally
internally generated
generated intangible
intangible
(i)
assets is
is included
included in
in 'net
'net gain/(loss)
gain/(loss) on
on non-financial
non-financial assets'
assets' line
line item
item on
on the
the comprehensive
comprehensive operating
operating statement
statement
assets

Note
Payables
Note12:12:
Payables

Note 12: Payables

CURRENT
CURRENT
Contractual
Contractual
Trade
Trade Creditors
Creditors
Income in
in Advance
Advance
Income
Accrued
Accrued Expenses
Expenses
Salary Packaging
Packaging
Salary
Other
Other
Statutory
Statutory
GST Payable
Payable
GST
TOTAL CURRENT
CURRENT
TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL PAYABLES
PAYABLES

Consolidated
Consolidated
2015
2015
$'000
$'000

Consolidated
Consolidated
2014
2014
$'000
$'000

39,482
39,482
6,439
6,439
21,059
21,059
2,522
2,522
2,038
2,038
71,540
71,540

53,306
53,306
6,185
6,185
23,748
23,748
2,302
2,302
8,670
8,670
94,211
94,211

1,685
1,685
1,685
1,685
73,225
73,225
73,225
73,225

761
761
761
761
94,972
94,972
94,972
94,972

(a) Maturity
Maturity analysis
analysis of
of payables
payables
(a)
Please
Please refer
refer to
to Note
Note 19(d)
19(d) for
for the
the ageing
ageing analysis
analysis of
of contractual
contractual payables
payables
(b)
(b) Nature
Nature and
and extent
extent of
of risk
risk arising
arising from
from payables
payables
Please refer
refer to
to note
note 19(e)
19(e) for
for the
the nature
nature and
and extent
extent of
of risks
risks arising
arising from
from contractual
contractual payables
payables
Please
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Note 13: Borrowings

Note 13: Borrowings
Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

CURRENT
- Advances from Department of Health and Human Services (i)
Total Australian Dollars Borrowings
Total Current

389
389
389

-

NON CURRENT
Australian Dollar Borrowings
- Advances from Department of Health and Human Services (i)
Total Australian Dollars Borrowings

1,451
1,451

1,745
1,745

Total Non-Current

1,451

1,745

Total Borrowings

1,840

1,745

(i) The Department of Health and Human Services has provided Melbourne Health with the loan to implement a Laboratory
Information System for its Pathology department.
The loan is an interest free loan, however a present value calculation was required as the loan is to be repaid over five
years commencing from 2015-16.

(a) Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to note 19(d) for the ageing analysis of borrowings.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from borrowings
Please refer to note 19(e) for the nature and extent of risks arising from borrowings.
(c) Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the borrowings.
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Note 14: Provisions

Note 14: Provisions

Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (Note 14(a))
Annual leave (Note 14(a))
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Long service leave (Note 14(a))
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (iii)
Other Employee Benefits (Note 14(a))
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Total Current Provisions
Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits (i)
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-Costs
Total Non-Current Provisions
Total Provisions
(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional LSL Entitlement
Annual Leave Entitlements
Accrued Wages and Salaries
Accrued Days Off
Substitution Leave
Four Clear Days
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (iii)
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
(b) Movements in provisions
Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year
Provision made during the year
- Revaluations
- Expense recognising Employee Service
Settlement made during the year
Balance at end of year

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

40,210
6,697

38,234
6,291

10,427
73,059

8,739
69,004

22,984
153,377

24,885
147,153

8,407
10,251
18,658
172,035

7,904
8,284
16,188
163,341

21,452
2,789
24,241

20,375
2,241
22,616

196,276

185,957

94,339
52,185
22,192
2,245
512
562

86,295
49,424
24,335
2,266
501
520

24,241
196,276

22,616
185,957

108,911

101,797

2,519
16,228
(9,078)
118,580

(11)
15,599
(8,474)
108,911

(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave and long service leave accrued
by employees, not including on-costs
(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts
(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values
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646
12,425
36,090
1,328
51,306

817

438
11,270
34,998
1,289
48,663

668

Consolidated
2014
$'000

74
439
1,457
352
2,401

79

64
366
1,332
106
2,132

264

502
11,636
36,330
1,395

50,795

53,707

932

720
12,864
37,547
1,680

896

Contribution Outstanding at
Total Contribution for the Year
Year End
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
2015
2014
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

(i) The basis for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit superannuation plans.

Defined contribution plans:
VicSuper
HESTA
First State
Other
TOTAL

(i) Defined benefit plans:
State Superannuation Fund - revised and new

Consolidated
2015
$'000

Paid Contribution for the Year

However, superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of
Melbourne Health.
The names, details and amounts expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by Melbourne Health are as follows:

Melbourne Health does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits
relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s defined
benefits liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.

Employees of Melbourne Health are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and Melbourne Health contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.
The defined benefit plan(s) provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.

Note 15: Superannuation

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15: Superannuation
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Note 16: Other liabilities

Note 16: Other liabilities
Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

CURRENT
Monies Held in Trust*
- Patient Monies Held in Trust*
- Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)*
Total Current
Total Other Liabilities

179
1,781
1,960
1,960

347
1,513
1,860
1,860

* Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash Assets (refer to Note 5)
TOTAL

1,960
1,960

1,860
1,860
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Note 17: Equity

Note 17: Equity
Consolidated

Consolidated

2015

2014

$'000

$'000

(a) Surpluses
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus 1
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

300,659

162,662

Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)
- Land

-

(20,377)

- Buildings

-

158,384

202
300,861

(10)
300,659

132,875
166,163
1,823
300,861

132,875
166,163
1,621
300,659

1,940

1,225

- Plant and Equipment/Motor Vehicle
Balance at the end of the reporting period*
* Represented by:
- Land
- Buildings
- Plant and Equipment/Motor Vehicle

Financial Assets Available-for-Sale Revaluation Surplus 2
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Valuation gain/(loss) recognised
Balance at end of the reporting period

(68)

715

1,872

1,940

(1)

The property, plant & equipment, motor vehicle asset revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of property, plant
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial
& equipment and motor vehicle.

Statements

(2)

The financial assets available-for-sale revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets. Where a revalued financial asset is sold, that portion of the reserve which relates to the financial asset, and is
effectively realised, is recognised in the net result. Where a revalued financial asset is impaired that portion of the
reserve which relates to that financial asset is recognised in the net result.

Note 17: Equity (Continued)

Consolidated

Consolidated

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfer to and from Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus

29,291
4,352

56,646
(27,355)

Balance at the end of the reporting period

33,643

29,291

336,376

331,890

304,943
53,808
358,751

304,943
304,943

(127,979)
(28,247)
(4,352)
(18)
(160,596)

(159,286)
3,953
27,354
(127,979)

534,531

508,854

Total Surpluses
(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfers to Contributed Capital
Balance at the end of the reporting period
(c) Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Net Result for the Year
Transfers to and from Surplus
Other - VCCC
Balance at the end of the reporting period
Total Equity at end of financial year
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Note 18: Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash
inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Note 18: Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Consolidated
2015
$'000
(28,247)

Consolidated
2014
$'000
3,953

Non-cash movements:
Depreciation & Amortisation
Revaluation gain recognised on Disposal of Non-Financial Assets
Impairment of Financial Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts
DHHS Loan discount

48,091
392
(8)
94

48,733
(10)
42
(570)
-

Movements included in investing and financing activities
Net (Gain)/Loss from Sale of Plant and Equipment

(2,319)

216

8,051
381
(21,757)
10,314
601

785
(21,773)
13,814
8,687
800

15,593

54,677

Net Result for the Year

Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Change in Inventories
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Note 19: Financial instruments
Note 19: Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Melbourne Health's principal financial instruments comprise of:
- Cash Assets
- Term Deposits
- Receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
- Investment in Equities and Managed Investment Schemes
- Payables (excluding statutory payables)
- Patient Trust Accounts
- Accommodation Bonds
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage Melbourne Health's financial risks within the government policy parameters.

Categorisation of financial instruments

Contractual
Contractual
financial
financial
Contractual
assets/liabilities assets/liabilities
Contractual
Contractual
designated at fair held-for-trading at financial assets financial assets - financial liabilities
loans and
value through fair value through
available for sale at amortised cost
receivables
profit/loss
profit/loss
2015
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
(i)
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trust Accounts
(ii)
Total Financial Liabilities

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

-

-

57,215

-

-

57,215

-

14,652
36,779

-

-

14,652
36,779

-

-

108,646

4,683
788
5,471

-

4,683
788
114,117

-

-

-

-

71,540
1,840

71,540
1,840

-

-

-

-

1,781
179
75,340

1,781
179
75,340

Contractual
Contractual
financial
financial
assets/liabilities assets/liabilities
Contractual
Contractual
Contractual
designated at fair held-for-trading at financial assets financial assets - financial liabilities
value through fair value through
loans and
available for sale at amortised cost
profit/loss
receivables
profit/loss
2014
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
- Trade Debtors
- Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
(i)
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trust Accounts
(ii)
Total Financial Liabilities

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total
$'000

-

-

57,365

-

-

57,365

-

-

14,466
36,299

-

-

14,466
36,299

-

-

108,130

5,133
799
5,932

-

5,133
799
114,062

-

-

-

-

94,211
1,745

94,211
1,745

-

-

-

-

1,513
347
97,816

1,513
347
97,816

Net holding
gain/(loss)

Total interest
income /
(expense)

Impairment loss

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

(68)
(68)
-

3,006
3,006
-

(392)
(392)
-

3,006
(460)
2,546
-

617
617
-

3,875
3,875
-

(42)
(42)
-

3,875
575
4,450
-

(i) The total amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit recoverable)
(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes payable)

(b) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)
Available for Sale (i)
Total Financial Assets
Total Financial Liabilities
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (i)
Available for Sale (i)
Total Financial Assets
Total Financial Liabilities

(i) For cash and cash equivalents, loans or receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the movement in the fair value of the asset,
interest revenue, plus or minus foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial assets, and minus any impairment recognised in the net result.
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Note
19:19:
Financial
instruments
(continued) (continued)
Note
Financial
instruments
(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of Melbourne Health, which comprise cash and deposits, non-statutory receivables and
available for sale contractual financial assets. Melbourne Health’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of a counter party on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Health Service. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular
basis.
Credit risk associated with Melbourne Health’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government.
For debtors other than the Government, it is Melbourne Health’s policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings of a minimum Triple-B
rating and to obtain sufficient collateral or credit enhancements, where appropriate.
In addition, Melbourne Health does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets
that are on fixed interest, except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for debtors, Melbourne Health’s policy is to
only deal with banks with high credit ratings.
Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that Melbourne Health will not be able to
collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, receivables which are more than 60 days
overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net
of any allowances for losses, represents Melbourne Health’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any
collateral obtained.
Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
- Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
- Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

Financial
institutions
(AAA to Acredit rating)

Government
agencies
(AAA credit
rating)

Government
agencies
(BBB credit
rating)

Other
(min BBB to
B-credit
rating)

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

15,239

41,976

-

-

57,215

-

7,048
9,358
-

-

7,604
9,679
17,742

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

3,895
582
19,716

58,382

-

788
206
36,019

4,683
788
114,117

57,365

-

-

-

57,365

-

8,313
10,256
-

-

6,153
9,612
16,431

14,466
9,612
10,256
16,431

5,133
799
63,297

18,569

-

32,196

5,133
799
114,062

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input tax credit recoverable).
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)
Ageing analysis of Financial Asset as at 30 June
Consolidated Not Past Due
and Not
Carrying
Impaired
Amount
2015

$'000

$'000

Less than 1
Month

Past Due But Not Impaired
1-3 Months 3 months 1 Year

$'000

$'000

$'000

1-5 Years

Impaired
Financial
Assets

$'000

$'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
- Investment in VCCC
Total Financial Assets
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

57,215

57,215

-

-

-

-

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

10,966
4,428
8,085
17,742

2,237
2,037
1,273
-

568
1,762
-

881
1,452
-

-

-

4,683
788
-

4,683
788
-

-

-

-

-

-

114,117

103,907

5,547

2,330

2,333

-

-

57,365

57,365

-

-

-

-

-

14,466
9,612
10,256
16,431

11,620
4,429
8,464
16,431

1,464
2,528
1,792
-

554
1,133
-

815
1,522
-

13
-

-

5,133
799

5,133
799

-

-

-

-

-

114,062

104,241

5,784

1,687

2,337

13

-

(i) Ageing analysis of financial assets excludes the types of statutory financial assets (i.e GST input tax credit)

Melbourne Health Annual Report 2014/15 | 63

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note
19:19:
Financial
instruments
(continued) (continued)
Note
Financial
instruments
(d) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Melbourne Health would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. Melbourne Health operates under the Government's fair payments policy of settling financial
obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, making payments within 30 days from the date of
resolution.
Melbourne Health’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as
disclosed on the balance sheet. Melbourne Health manages its liquidity risk via daily, weekly, monthly and
annual cash flow forecasts.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Melbourne Health's financial liabilities. For
interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.
Maturity analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June

2015
Financial Liabilities

Carrying
Amount
$'000

At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
Payables - Other Accruals
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

Maturity Dates
Less than 1-3 Months 3 months - 1-5 Years
Contractual 1 Month
1 Year
Cash Flows
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

44,042
27,498
1,840

44,042
27,498
1,840

27,046
27,498
-

15,864
-

1,132
-

1,840

1,781
179

1,781
179

179

200
-

700
-

881
-

75,340

75,340

54,723

16,064

1,832

2,721

64,278
29,933
1,745

64,278
29,933
1,745

36,386
29,933
-

27,892
-

-

1,745

1,513
347

1,513
347

347

300
-

600
-

613
-

97,816

97,816

66,666

28,192

600

2,358

2014
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
Payables - Other Accruals
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes the types of statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable)
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)

Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)

(e) Market Risk
Melbourne Health's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to
foreign currency and other price risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are
disclosed in the paragraph below.
Currency Risk
Melbourne Health is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to purchases of
supplies and consumables from overseas. This is because of a limited amount of purchases denominated in foreign
currencies and a short timeframe between commitment and settlement.
Interest Rate Risk
Exposure to interest rate risk might arise primarily through Melbourne Health's interest bearing liabilities. Minimisation
of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. For financial
liabilities, Melbourne Health mainly undertake financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
Melbourne Health has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks through its cash, deposits and term deposits
that are at floating rate.
Melbourne Health manages this risk by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments with
relatively even maturity profiles, with only insignificant amounts of financial instruments at floating rate. Management
has concluded for cash at bank, as financial assets that can be left at floating rate without necessarily exposing
Melbourne Health to significant bad risk, management monitors movement in interest rates on a daily basis.
Equity Price Risk
Melbourne Health is exposed to equity price risk arising from its portfolio of shares and hybrid securities, which are
used as cash backing for Special Purpose Funds and other external liabilities such as long service leave.
Minimisation of risk is reflected in investment strategies as follows: Share Portfolio: Investing within Investment
Committee approved asset classes with the total investment portfolio risk profile higher than the ASX200 and Hybrid
Securities: To ensure regular income streams and low equity volatility by investing in high credit quality, security
backed equities.
Interest rate exposure of financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June
Weighted
Carrying
Average
Amount
Effective
Interest
2015
Rate (%)
$'000
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2.67
57,215
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
14,652
- Patient Fees
9,679
- Inter Hospital Debtors
9,358
Other Accrued Revenue
17,742
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
4,683
- Hybrid Securities
788
114,117
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
44,042
Payables - Other Accruals
27,498
Borrowings
1,840
(i)
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
1,781
- Patient Trusts
179
75,340
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
3.14
57,365
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
14,466
- Patient Fees
9,612
- Inter Hospital Debtors
10,256
Other Accrued Revenue
16,431
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
5,133
- Hybrid Securities
799
114,062
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
64,278
Payables - Other Accruals
29,933
Borrowings
1,745
(i)
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds
1,513
- Patient Trusts
347
97,816

Interest Rate Exposure
Fixed
Variable
NonInterest
Interest
Interest
Rate
Rate
Bearing
$'000
$'000
$'000
17,818
-

39,397
-

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

17,818

39,397

4,683
788
56,902

-

-

44,042
27,498
1,840

-

1,781
179
1,960

73,380

36,507

20,858

-

-

-

14,466
9,612
10,256
16,431

36,507

20,858

5,133
799
56,697

-

-

64,278
29,933
1,745

175
175

1,513
172
1,685

95,956

(i) The carrying amount excludes types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable)
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Note
Financial
instruments
(continued)
Note19:
19:
Financial
instruments
(continued)
(e) Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts and management's knowledge and experience of the
financial markets, Melbourne Health believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates
are sourced from the Reserve Bank of Australia):
- A shift of +0.5% and -0.5% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 2.5%;
- A parallel shift of +13.58% and -13.58% in equity rate return reflecting the standard deviation over the long term return of the ASX200
Accumulation Index.

The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument held by Melbourne
Health at year end as presented to key management personnel, if changes in the relevant risk occur.
Carrying
Amount
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
Payables - Other Accruals
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Fees
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
Payables - Other Accruals
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts

$'000

Interest Rate Risk
-0.50%
+0.50%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Other Price Risk
-13.58%
13.58%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

57,215

(286)

(286)

286

286

-

-

-

-

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,683
788

-

-

-

-

(636)
(107)

(636)
(107)

636
107

636
107

44,042
27,498
1,840

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,781
179

(286)

(286)

286

286

(743)

(743)

743

743

57,365

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

14,466
9,612
10,256
16,431

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,133
799

-

-

-

-

(476)
(74)

(476)
(74)

476
74

476
74

64,278
29,933
1,745

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,513
347

-

-

-

-

(550)

(550)

550

550

(i) The carrying amount excludes types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable)
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Note
Financial
instruments
(continued)
Note19:
19:
Financial
instruments
(continued)
(f) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows:
• Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;
• Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.
Melbourne Health considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in
the financial statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values because of the short-term nature of the
financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full.
The following table shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the
same as the carrying amounts.
Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
Consolidated
Carrying
Amount

Fair value

Consolidated
Carrying
Amount

Fair value

2015
$'000

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

2014
$'000

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables (i)
- Trade Debtors
- Patient Debtors
- Inter Hospital Debtors
Other Accrued Revenue
Available for Sale
- Shares in Other Entities
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

57,215

57,215

57,365

57,365

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

14,652
9,679
9,358
17,742

14,466
9,612
10,256
16,431

14,466
9,612
10,256
16,431

4,683
788
114,117

4,683
788
114,117

5,133
799
114,062

5,133
799
114,062

44,042
27,498
1,840

44,042
27,498
1,840

64,278
29,933
1,745

64,278
29,933
1,745

1,781
179
75,340

1,781
179
75,340

1,513
347
97,816

1,513
347
97,816

Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
Payables - Trade Creditors
Payables - Other Accruals
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
- Accommodation Bonds
- Patient Trusts
Total Financial Liabilities

(i) The carrying amount excludes types of statutory financial assets and liabilities (i.e. GST input tax credit and GST payable).

Financial assets measured at fair value
Carrying
Amount as at
30 June
2015
Financial assets at fair value through
profit & loss
Available for Sale Securities
- Shares
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

$'000

2014
Financial assets at fair value through
profit & loss
- Shares
- Hybrid Securities
Total Financial Assets

Fair value measurement at end of reporting
period using:
Level 1
$'000

Level 2
$'000

Level 3
$'000

4,683
788
5,471

4,683
788
5,471

-

-

5,133
799
5,932

5,104
799
5,903

-

29
29

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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Note 19: Financial instruments (continued)
(f) Fair value (continued)
The fair value of unlisted investments is based on the discounted cash flow technique. Significant inputs in applying this technique include
growth rates applied for cash flows and discount rates used.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value movements
Available-for-sale financial
assets

Opening balance
Total gains or losses
-in net result
Closing balance
Total gains or losses for the period
included in profit or loss for assets
held at the end of the period

Equities and managed
investment schemes
2015
2014
$'000
$'000
22
-

-

Total

2015
$'000

2014
$'000
-

22

7
29

-

7
29

29

-

29

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note
Commitments
for expenditure
Note
20:20:
Commitments
for expenditure
a) Commitments other than public private partnerships
Consolidated
2015
$'000

Consolidated
2014
$'000

Payable:
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Total capital expenditure commitments

17,953
13,290
6,493
37,736

12,384
30,693
345
43,422

Other Expenditure Commitments
Payable:
Contracted Services
Total other expenditure commitments

43,638
43,638

24,321
24,321

Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting
date:
Operating Leases
Total lease commitments

101,453
101,453

96,123
96,123

Operating Leases
Non-cancellable
Sub Total
Total lease commitments

101,453
101,453
101,453

96,123
96,123
96,123

Total Commitments (inclusive of GST) other than public
private partnerships

182,827

163,866

Capital Expenditure Commitments

All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.
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(b) Commitments payable

Note
20:20:
Commitments
for expenditure
(continued)
Note
Commitments
for expenditure
(continued)
(b) Commitments payable
Capital expenditure commitments payable
Less than 1 year
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years
Total
capital
expenditure
commitments
Capital
expenditure
commitments
payable
Other
expenditure
Less than
1 year commitments payable
Less
than
1 year
Longer
than
1 year but not longer than 5 years
Longercapital
than 1expenditure
year but not longer
than 5 years
Total
commitments
5
yearsexpenditure
or more
Other
commitments payable
Total
other
commitments
Less than
1 expenditure
year
Lease
Longercommitments
than 1 year butpayable
not longer than 5 years
Less
than
year
5 years
or 1more
Longer
than expenditure
1 year but notcommitments
longer than 5 years
Total other
5
years
or
more
Lease commitments payable
Totalthan
lease
Less
1 commitments
year
Total
(inclusive
GST)
Longercommitments
than 1 year but
not longerofthan
5 years
Less
GST
from the Australian Tax Office
5
years
or recoverable
more
Total
(exclusive of GST)
Total commitments
lease commitments
Total commitments (inclusive of GST)
All
amounts
shown in the
commitments
note
areOffice
nominal amounts.
Less
GST recoverable
from
the Australian
Tax
Total commitments (exclusive of GST)

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

36,869
2015
$'000 867

42,341
2014
$'0001,081

36,869
17,945
867
25,693
37,736
43,638
17,945

42,341
11,267
1,081
11,739
43,422
1,315
24,321
11,267

25,693
18,99628,271
43,638
54,186
101,453
18,996
182,827
28,271
(16,621)
54,186
166,206
101,453

11,739
17,396
1,315
25,893
24,321
52,834
96,123
17,396
163,866
25,893
(14,897)
52,834
148,969
96,123

182,827
(16,621)
166,206

163,866
(14,897)
148,969

37,736

43,422

All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts.

Note 21: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Note 21: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Consolidated

Consolidated
2014
$'000

Note 21: Contingent assets and contingent 2015
liabilities
$'000

Contingent Liabilities
Quantifiable
Department of Health Capital Funding - PCMS
Total
Quantifiable
Contingent Liabilities
Contingent
Liabilities
Quantifiable
Department of Health Capital Funding - PCMS
Total Quantifiable Contingent Liabilities

Consolidated Consolidated
2015
2014
$'000
$'000 500
500
-

500
500
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Depreciation & Amortisation
Expense

Total Liabilities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets

Segment Liabilities

Total Assets

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets

Net Result for Year

Interest Income

Net Result from ordinary activities

Total Revenue
EXPENSES
External Segment Expenses
Total Expenses

REVENUE
External Segment Revenue

(30,210)

32,779

49,734

(30,677)

(176,383)
(176,383)

491,821
491,821

(123)

(174,338)
(174,338)

515,316
515,316

(20,178)

(123)

(596,860)
(596,860)

(650,857)
(650,857)

(20,178)

596,737
596,737

2014
$'000

630,679
630,679

2015
$'000

Acute

Note 22: Operating segments

(15,149)

24,560

(86,090)
(86,090)

254,467
254,467

(9,964)

(9,964)

(321,399)
(321,399)

311,435
311,435

2015
$'000

(15,960)

17,318

(93,185)
(93,185)

259,835
259,835

(64)

(64)

(315,327)
(315,327)

315,263
315,263

2014
$'000

Mental Health

(1,048)

1,700

(5,958)
(5,958)

17,611
17,611

(690)

(690)

(22,243)
(22,243)

21,553
21,553

2015
$'000

RAC

(1,131)

1,227

(6,601)
(6,601)

18,407
18,407

(5)

(5)

(22,338)
(22,338)

22,333
22,333

2014
$'000

(1,217)

1,973

(6,915)
(6,915)

20,438
20,438

3,385
2,585

(800)

(25,814)
(25,814)

25,014
25,014

2015
$'000

Other

(1,432)

1,554

(8,365)
(8,365)

23,325
23,325

4,150
4,145

(5)

(28,307)
(28,307)

28,302
28,302

2014
$'000

(48,091)

77,967

(273,301)
(273,301)

807,832
807,832

3,385
(28,247)

(31,632)

(1,020,313)
(1,020,313)

988,681
988,681

2015
$'000

(48,733)

52,878

(284,534)
(284,534)

793,388
793,388

4,150
3,953

(197)

(962,832)
(962,832)

962,635
962,635

2014
$'000

Consolidated
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Note 22: Operating segments
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Note 22a: Operating segments (continued)
The major products/services from which the
above segments derive revenue are:
Acute
Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on admitted patient services, where
services are delivered in:
· Public hospitals
· Free standing day hospital facilities
· Palliative care facilities
· Rehabilitation facilities

This category includes recurrent health revenue/
expenditure for scope patient transport, training,
research and telemedicine where it relates to offcampus, ambulatory services.
Mental Health
Mental Health Services (Mental Health)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on specialised mental health
services (child and adolescent, general and adult,
community and forensic) managed or funded
by the state or territory health administrations
and includes:

· A lcohol and drug treatment units

· Admitted patient services (including forensic
mental health)

· Hospitals specialising in dental services, hearing
and ophthalmic aids

· Outpatient services

This category also includes recurrent health
revenue/expenditure on admitted patient
services where service delivery is contracted to
private hospitals or treatment facilities as well
as recurrent funds for scope patient transport,
training, research and telemedicine where it
relates to admitted patient services.

· Community-based services

Outpatient Services (Outpatients) comprises all
recurrent health revenue/expenditure on public
hospital type outpatient services, where services
are delivered in:
· Public hospital outpatient clinics
· Free standing day hospital facilities
· Rehabilitation facilities
· A lcohol and drug treatment units
· Outpatient clinics specialising in ophthalmic
aids or palliative care
This category includes recurrent health revenue/
expenditure for scope patient transport, training,
research and telemedicine where it relates to
outpatient services.
Emergency Department Services (EDS)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on emergency department services
that are available free of charge to public
patients. This category includes recurrent health
expenditure/revenue for scope patient transport,
training, research and telemedicine where it
relates to emergency department services.
Off Campus, Ambulatory Services (Ambulatory)
comprises all recurrent health revenue/
expenditure on public hospital type services
provided under the following agreements:
· Services that are provided or received by
hospitals (or area health services) but are
delivered/received outside a hospital campus.
· Services which have moved from a hospital to
a community setting since June 1998.
· Services which fall within the agreed scope of
inclusions under the new system, which have
never been delivered within hospitals i.e. in
rural/remote regions.

· Emergency department services (where it is
possible to separate emergency department
mental health services)
· Residential and ambulatory services
This category includes recurrent health
expenditure for scope patient transport, training,
research and telemedicine where it relates to
mental health services.
RAC
· Residential Aged Care comprises of residential
high care and low care facilities
Other
Other comprises revenue/expenditure for services
not separately classified above, including:
· Aged Care including Home and Community
Care (HACC) programs, Allied Health, Aged
Care Assessment and support services
· Public Health Services including Laboratory
testing, Blood Borne Viruses/Sexually
Transmitted Infections clinical services, Koori
Health liaison officers, immunisation and
screening services
· Drugs Services including drug withdrawal,
counselling and the needle and syringe program
· Disability Services including aids and
equipment and flexible support packages to
people with a disability
· Community Care programs including sexual
assault support, early parenting services,
parenting assessment and skills development,
and various support services
· Health and Community Initiatives
· Clinical support, infrastructure and corporate
· Business Units; Diagnostics laboratory and
medical imaging services
Geographical Segment
Melbourne Health operates predominantly in
Melbourne, Victoria. Effectively all of revenue,
net surplus from ordinary activities and segment
assets relate to operations in Melbourne, Victoria.
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Note 23a: Responsible persons disclosures

Note 23a: Responsible persons disclosures

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994 , the following disclosures are
made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
Period
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable David Davis MLC, Minister for Health and Minister for
Ageing
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MP, Minister for Mental Health
The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health, Minister for
Ambulance Services
The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and
Ageing, Minister for Mental Health

1/07/2014 - 3/12/2014
1/07/2014 - 3/12/2014
04/12/2014 - 30/06/2015
04/12/2014 - 30/06/2015

Governing Board
Mrs Jane Bell

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Mr David Cartwright

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Mr Robert Doyle

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Mr Michael Gorton AM

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Mr William Mountford

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Mr Desmond Pearson AO
Mr Timothy Pitt
Prof Ruth Salom
Prof Stephen Smith

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015
1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015
1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015
1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Accountable Officers
Dr Gareth Goodier

1/07/2014 - 30/06/2015

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands;
Consolidated
Income Band
$0 - $9,999
$10,000 - $19,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$60,000 - $69,999
$70,000 - $79,999
$510,000 - $519,999
Total Numbers
Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the reporting entity
amounted to:
Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier
and Cabinet.

2015
No.

2014
No.
1
7
1
1

7
1
3
3
1
1

10

16

$852,863

$788,350

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
$'000
R. Doyle is the Lord Mayor of Melbourne (City of Melbourne) which provides food registrations for premises on
normal commercial terms and conditions.

$'000
-

2

1

-

298

-

-

1

13

38

12,771

-

R. Doyle is an exofficio member of the Cancer Council of Victoria which provide biospecimens through the
Victorian Cancer Biobank on normal commercial terms and conditions.
R. Doyle was made a Fellow of Monash University which provides educational and research services on normal
commercial terms and conditions.
J. Bell is a Non Executive Director of the Victorian Workcover Authority which provide WorkSafe Victoria
services on normal commercial terms and conditions.
M. Gorton is a Principal at Russell Kennedy Partners which provide legal services on normal commercial terms
and conditions.
S. Smith is the Dean, Faculty of Medicine, Dentistry and Health Sciences at the University of Melbourne which
provides educational services and facilities on normal commercial terms and conditions.

72 | Melbourne Health Annual Report 2014/15

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note
23b:
Executive
officer disclosures
Note
23b:
Executive
officer disclosures
Executive Officers' Remuneration
The numbers of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting
period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive officers
is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments, redundancy
payments and retirement benefits.

$140,000 - $149,999
$150,000 - $159,999
$170,000 - $179,999
$180,000 - $189,999
$190,000 - $199,999
$200,000 - $209,999
$210,000 - $219,999
$220,000 - $229,999
$230,000 - $239,999
$240,000 - $249,999
$250,000 - $259,999
$260,000 - $269,999
$270,000 - $279,999
$280,000 - $289,999
$290,000 - $299,999
$300,000 - $309,999
$310,000 - $319,999
$320,000 - $329,999
$330,000 - $339,999
$340,000 - $349,999
$350,000 - $359,999
$360,000 - $369,999
$370,000 - $379,999
$380,000 - $389,999
$400,000 - $409,999
$410,000 - $419,999
Total
Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE) (i)
Total Remuneration

$

CONSOLIDATED
Total Remuneration
Base Remuneration
2015
2014
2015
2014
No.
No.
No.
No.
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
2
1
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
10
10
10
10
9
9
9
9
3,154,408 $
2,820,829 $
2,832,730 $
2,492,002

Noteshours
to and
Part
Financial
Statements
(i) Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary
perForming
week over
theof
52the
weeks
for a reporting
period.

Note 24. Remuneration of auditors
Note 24: Remuneration of auditors
2015
$'000
Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit or review of financial statement

2014
$'000
221
221

189
189

Note 25. Ex gratia expenses
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2015

2014
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Note25.25.
gratia
expenses
Note
Ex Ex
gratia
expenses
Melbourne Health has made the following ex gratia expenses:

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Redress payment

100

-

Total ex-gratia expenses (i)

100

-

Includes ex-gratia for both individual items and in aggregate that are greater than or equal to $5,000.
(i) The total for ex gratia expenses is also presented in Note 3 Expenses .
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Note26:26:
Jointly
controlled
operations
and assets
Note
Jointly
controlled
operations and
assets
Name of Entity

Principal Activity

Ownership Interest
2015
2014
%
%

Victorian Comprehensive Cancer Centre Limited

Cancer Research & Treatment

11.11

12.50

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Melbourne Health's interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations
and assets is detailed below. The amounts are included in the financial statements and
consolidated financial statements under their respective asset categories:

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

241
5
4
250

223
3
5
231

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total Non Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

4
4
254

4
4
235

Current Liabilities
Payables
Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Total Current Liabilities

51
38
89

47
37
84

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

5
5
94
160

6
6
90
145

EQUITY
Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)
TOTAL EQUITY

160
160

145
145

Melbourne Health's interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled
operations and assets is detailed below:

Revenues
Grants
Other - Interest
Other - Revenue
Total Revenue
Expenses
Employee Benefits
Depreciation
Research
Supplies and Services
Total Expenses
Profit

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

340
6
10
356

365
6
7
378

(151)
(1)
(72)
(101)
(325)
31

(169)
(1)
(57)
(136)
(363)
15
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Note 27: Events occurring after the balance sheet date
No events have occurred since reporting date and
date of certification of this report which will have
a material effect on the information contained in
the financial report.

Note 28: Economic dependency
The financial performance and position of
Melbourne Health has declined since the prior
year, with the health service reporting a deficit
net result before capital and specific items of
$1.5m (2014: surplus $0.3m), a net current asset
position of ($104m) (2014: ($115m)), resulting
in a current asset ratio of 0.58 (2014: 0.56) and
a (continued) cash outflow from operations of
$994m (2014: $945m).
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As a result of the financial performance and
position, Melbourne Health has obtained a
letter of support from the State Government and
in particular, the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS), confirming that the
department will continue to provide Melbourne
Health adequate cash flow to meet its current and
future obligations up to 30 September 2016. A
letter was also obtained for the previous financial
year. On that basis, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.
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